NCCDD

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

Quarterly Council Meeting
May 12 & 13, 2016

Hilton Garden Inn
Cary, NC




Hilton Garden Inn
131 Columbus Avenue
Cary, NC 27518

Phone: 919-377-0440
Fax: 919-377-0445



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Morth Carolina C

D ot :i:: Tell]d

.l:‘.r \ 3}1‘;}1 . NCC

StAff ON Call ..o e e e e 1—2
Committee ASSISNMENTS oo et e et e s r e s s e e s 3-4
New Committees & Initiative ASSIENMENTS ...ccoviieeeree e, 5-6
Thursday & Friday ABENAa ......coociiereveiieie et eeee s es e s s e s s s rnr e e sre e es 7-8
........................................................................ 9-22

Council Meeting MINURES ............oo it ae e e e rb s eeae 23-30
A&L, CCB & DSC Committee MINUEES ....coveueeieicie e iveesecmans 31-40
Financial Asset Development Committee ........cocoeeiviveveriiniceee et 41-42
F N =T o o b- T OO OSSP PSP 43
Other Items of Interest. ... e 44
Community Living Committee........ccoooo v eera e 45-46
FX= =T T b~ T O OO SRR 47
Other 11ems Of INTErest. . e ae e 48
Advocacy Development Committee......ooiioii e eeas 49-50
Y= o T b O U ROV ROTOTORTOTOTORPINt 51
Updated PONCIES ..ooeieiriiir ettt e e 52-58
........................................................................................ 59-60

Governance Ad HOC Committee Minutes ......o..eeiiiviiiiviniieneens. 61-62
Other Hems of Iterest. ... e e s e 63-84
5¥ear State Plan 2017-2021.......oo et et in e 85-86
NCCDD Development Schedule.............cooiiiiiiinin e 87-88
Timetine for 2017-2021 ........ovieeeniireirre et ree s e s e 89-30

5 Year State Plan Goals, Objectives & Activities Timelines .................... 91-93

Key Elements of Choice Chart ... 94

5 Year State Pl , PR 95-96
Council Meeting ActiVItIES......cccviiiiiiiiirie e e 97-98

NCCDD 2011-2016 5 Year Goals, Objectives, Activities & Timelines.... 99-116
Comprehensive List of Funded Initiatives..........cooooooinn. 117-120



NCCDD
. STAFF ON CALL

JOAnn Toomey

(919) 377-0440 - Hotel Front Desk

Please call the hotel front desk
and ask them to call JoAnn Toomey.

NCCDD

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities




NCCDD

Horth Carolina Councll on




I 2016 COUNCIL COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

Ronald Reeve: Chair Parent of Child with DD
Adonis Brown: Vice-Chair Individual with BD

Katie Holler: Vice-Chair Parent of Child with DD
Ann Cunningham: Secretary Parent of Child with DD
Amanda Bergen: Recommended Chair, Financial Asset Development Parent of Chiid with DD
Kerri Eaker. Recommended Chair, Community Living Parent of Child with DD
Nessie Siler: Recommended Chair, Advocacy Development Individual with DD

l Staff: Chris Egan

FINANCIAL ASSET DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

l Amanda Bergen, Recommended Chair
Caroline Ambrose
Wayne Black; Alternate: Jack Rogers
Adonis Brown
Anna Cunningham
Crystal Foreman
William Hussey; Alternate: Dreama McCoy
Wing Ng, M.D.

Dave Richard, Deputy Secretary; Alternate: VACANT

Jim Swain; Alternate: Gina Price
Senator Tommy Tucker

David White

Paula Woodhouse

Staff: Philip Woodward

I COMMUNITY LIVING COMMITTEE

Kerri Eaker, Recommended Chair
Lisa Byrd
Courtney Cantrell; Alternate: Mya Lewis
Christina Carter; Alternate: Andrea Misenheimer
Joshua Gettinger
Michael Groves
Desiree Peterscn
Joe Piven, M.D_; Alternate: Deb Zuver
|. Azell Reeves
Vicki Smith
Peggy Terhune, Ph.D.
Sandra Terrell; Alternate: Deb Goda
. Kelly Woodall

l Staff: Steve Strom

Parent of Child with DD
Individual with DD

Agency: Div. of Social Services
Individual with DD

Parent of Child with DD
[ndividual with DD

Agency: Dept. Public Instruction
Parent of Child with DD
Agency. DHHS

Agency: Div. of Voc. Rehabilitation
Other: Legislative
Parent of Child with DD
Parent of Child with DD

Parent of Child with DD
Individual with DD

Agency: Div. of MH/DD/SAS
Non-Profit Agency

Parent of Child with DD
Individual with DD

Individual with DD

Agency: Carolina Institute for DD
Parent of Child with DD

Agency: Disability Rights NC
Local Non-Governmental Agency
Agency: Div, Medical Assist.
individual with DD



ADVOCACY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

Nessie Siler, Recommended Chair
Karen Armstrong

Wendy Boyd

Eric Chavis

Mary Edwards; Alternate: Joseph Breen
Jason Faircloth

Lourdes M. Fernandez

Katie Holler

Representative Verla Insko

Cheryl Powell

Clare Stocket

VACANT Alternate:/Danielle Matula
VACANT

Staff- Melissa Swartz

STAFF

Chris Egan

Cora Gibson
Steve Strom
Melissa Swartz
JoAnn Toomey
Yadira Vasquez
Shar'ron Williams
Philip Woodward
Letha Young

Individual with DD
Public at Large

Parent of Child with DD
Individual with DD

Agency: Div. of Aging & Adult Servs.

Individual with DD

Parent of Child with DD

Parent of Child with DD

Other: Legislative

Individual with DD

Parent of Child with DD

Agency: Women's and Children Hith
Dept. of Public Safety

Executive Director
Administrative Assistant
Systems Change Manager
Systems Change Manager
Director of Operations
Business Officer

Business Services Coordinator
Systems Change Manager
Office Assistant

-3



NC COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
NEW COMMITTEES AND INITIATIVE ASSIGNMENTS

GRANTEE NAME

CHILDREN'S HOSPITAL MEDICAL

INITIATIVE NAME

i Rk ryl o G

PROJECT SEARCH

NATIONAL DISABILITY INSTITUTE

UPWARD FINANCIAL STABILITY

WESTERN CAROLINA UNIVERSITY

COASTAL HORIZON CENTER, INC.

LEARNING & EARNING AFTER HIGH SCHOOL

o

SAFETY AND SECURITY: DOMESTIC VIOLENCE

DISABILITY RIGHTS, NC

ADULT CARE HOME TRANSITION TO THE COMM.

DIVISION OF AGING & ADULT SRVC.

GUARDIANSHIP

EASTER SEALS

MEDICAL & HEALTH HOMES

NC DEPT. OF PUBLIC SAFETY

ADVOCACY INSTITUTE

EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS N

PARTNERS IN POLICYMAKING

ALLIANCE OF DISABILITY ADVOCATES

NC ADA NETWORK - FISCAL AGENT/INTER.

BENCHMARKS

NC CHAPTER OF THE NCADSP

FIRST IN FAMILIES

SIBLING SUPPORT

IN-HOUSE

NC ADA NETWORK

NASDDDS

MEDICAL REFORM SEG

UNIVERSITY OF DELAWARE

ADVANCING STRONG LEADERS

CONFERENCE FUNDING

IN-HOUSE

IN-HOUSE COUNCIL DEVELOPMENT FUND
IN-HOUSE JEAN WOLFF-ROSSI FUND
IN-HOUSE PROGRAM MANAGEMENT/QM
IN-HOUSE PUBLIC POLICY

O'NEILL PUBLIC RELATIONS

NCCDD COMMUNICATIONS

'NCCDD ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET |ADMIN. STAFF & COUNCIL EXPENSES N




North Carolina Councii on

Developmaental Disabilities



NCCDD Meeting: NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Moty Comsis Covndl o Location: Hilton Garden Inn, Cary NC

Thevaeomaniai CensbilEars

9:00 - 10:30 AM
10:30 = 10:45 AM
10:45 - 11:00 AM

$1:00 - 12:00 PM

12:00 - 1:00 PM

1:00 - 3:30 PM

3:30 - 4:00 PM

4:00 - 5:30 PM

5:30 - 6:45 PM

DRAFT
AGENDA
Thursday, May 12, 2016
Bradford Ballroom

MEMBER ORIENTATION AND REFRESHER-OPEN TO ALL MEMBERS
BREAK

WELCOME AND AGENDA REVIEW

INITIATIVE UPDATES AND CONTINUATION FUNDING:

11:00-11:30 O'Neill Communications Update and Continuation Funding
11:30-11:50 Administrative/Program/Rossi Fund Budgets and Fiscal Report
11:50-12:00 COUNCIL REVIEW

LUNCH PROVIDED/BREAK

INITIATIVE UPDATES AND CONTINUATION FUNDING:

1:15-1:35 National Disability Institute/Upward to Financial Stability
1:35-1:45 FINANCIAL ASSET DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REVIEW
1:45-2:05 Dept. of Public Safety/Emergency Preparedness

2:05-2:25 Easter Seals/Medical & Health Homes Cost Extension
2:25-2:45 Permission to Draft Supporied Living RFA

2:45-3:00 COMMUNITY LIVING COMMITTEE REVIEW

3:00-3:20 First in Families/Sibling Support

3:20-3:30 ADVOCACY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE REVIEW

BREAK

COMMITTEE MEETINGS:

Financial Asset Development . Bradford C
Community Living Bradford B
Advocacy Development Bradford A

BUFFET DINNER —Bradford D
Public Policy Update
Governance Ad Hoc Committee Policy Updates.




8:30 — 8:35 AM

§:35 — 9:05 AM
9:05 -9:10 AM
910 -9:15 AM
915 - 9:30 AM
9:30 - 9:35 AM
9:35 — 10:00 AM

10:00 - 10:15 AM

DRAFT

AGENDA

Friday, May 13, 2016
Bradford C&D

Meeting: NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Location: Hilton Garden Inn, Cary NC

WELCOME/ CONFLICT OF INTEREST/ SAFETY AND PREPAREDMESS

NEW MEMEER AFFIRMATIONS.....................

APPROVAL OF MINUTES ........ccooiinrimiaraniarssrsssnnsas s nes
DIRECTOR'S REPORT ...t
FINAMILE REPOMT ... oo v nons s pio s sicismisinin s i o=

LEGISLATIWVE UPDATE...........oooimen v cncermesn s

PUBLIC COMMENT".........

«einrasneea 00N Rogva
caarien e PUON FRBEVE
veaeenadANNA Cunningham
e eeemeenON RegveE
canreenene GHAS Egan

e RON Reave

...senalor or Representative

fetin e e FRON FeEve

10:15 = 10:45 AM BREAK

10:45 - 11:20 AM COMMITTEE REPORTS:
a) Exaculive Committee.......

) Financial Asset Development ..........c.coeiiiiniiiianianaas
£) AR, LIV s civam i criusin s s P ms i wi s e s e R
d} Advocacy Developmemt ... ......cc.coeveereimemansrireres

cerrineener 0N Regve
oo manda Bergen
cemmeanensennnnens BT Ekr
verereenen s NBSSIE Siler

11:20 - 11:45 AM AD HOC COMMITTEE UPDATES:
~Govemance Ad Hoc Commitiee Update Peggy Terhune/Crystal Foreman
~Membership & Development Ad Hoc Commitiee Update...............Carrie Ambrose
~Communications Ad Hoc Committee Update...Crystal Foreman/Anna Cunningham
~Five Year State Plan Development Ad Hoc Committee Update............Nessie Siler

11:45 - 12:25 PM NEW BUSINESS
~In-House Jean Wolff Rossi Participant Involvement Fund Approval
~rMeill Public Relations/NCCDD Communications Initiative
~Administrative/Program Budgets Approval

12:25 - 12:30 PM OLD BUSINESS

12:30 PM ADJOURN

“Tha Morth Carolinag Councll on Developmenital Desabilities (MOCDD] is commaied b affenng members of (he ganersl public 8n opporiunity
it imake pubic comments. MCCDD members who would like 1o commaent during this penod of the meetng must be recogrored by tha
Councll Chasr and an limfod O s mirules par Spaake




Executive

Committee

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

e
Pl



Maorth Carolina



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities (NCCDD)
FINAL
Executive Committee Minutes
Monday, January 11, 2016
9:00 AM - 11:00 AM

Members Present: Carrie Ambrose, Adonis Brown, Katie Holler, 1. Azell
Reeves, Ron Reeve

Members Absent: Anna Cunningham

Staff present: Chris Egan, JoAnn Toomey, Yadira Vasquez

Chairman Ron Reeve began the meeting by sharing his disappointment
that Sam Miller was not reappointed but informed the members that he was
pleased to announce that Sam's replacement is Paula Woodhouse. Azell
Reeves asked if we had received a reason from Boards and Commissions
why Sam was not reappointed and Ron stated we hadn’t and that we
usually don't receive that information. He did let the members know of

Paula Woodhouse’s qualifications and experience that she will bring tc the
Council.

. Approval of Minutes:
The draft minutes of the December 18, 2015 Executive Committee
meetings were discussed.

MOTION: Adonis Brown made a motion to approve the December 18,

2015 minutes. Carrie Ambrose seconded the motion. The motion was
approved.

Il Financial Update:

Yadira Vasquez reviewed the financial reports for the NCCDD. There was
discussion on the 2014-2016 FFY balances and initiative expenditures.
Members were also provided FFYs 2017-2019 budget summaries and
detail reports as requested. There was some discussion about the current
initiatives and which ones would be coming up for continuation funding at
the February Council meeting. Ron asked the members if there were any
further questions or comments and there were none.

lit. Conference Funding Requests:
The members reviewed a request from the Frank Porter Graham Child
Development Institute for the 2016 Nationa! Early Childhood Inclusion

11



Institute — being held May 10-12, 2016 at the Friday Center for Continuing
Education, Chapel Hill, NC. The reguest is to fund one speaker for up to
$2,485.

MOTION: Katie Holler made a motion to approve the request from the
Frank Porter Graham Child Development Institute for the 2016 MNational
Early Childhood Inclusion Institute — being held May 10-12, 2016 at the
Friday Center for Continuing Education, Chapel Hill, NC to fund one
speaker for up to $2,485. Carrie Ambrose seconded the mation. The
motion was approved.

The members next reviewed a request from The Arc of Davidson County
for the Fourth Annual Self Advocates Canference, “Riding the Wave to My
Future” being held March 19, 2016 at the Great Wolf Lodge, Concord, NC.
The request is to fund one speaker for up to $1,650. Adonis Brown
recused himself from the discussion and motion since he sits on the board
of the Arc.

MOTION: |. Azeil Reeves made a motion to approve the request from
The Arc of Davidson County for the Fourth Annual Self Advocates
Conference, “Riding the Wave to My Future” being held March 19, 2016 at
the Great Wolf Lodge, Concord, NC to fund one speaker for up to $1,650.
Carrie Ambrose seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

V. Update on the 5-Year Plan:

Adonis Brown asked Chris Egan to update the members on the progress of
the Five Year Plan. Chris gave some examples of the public comments
received to date and they are mostly positive. He does not anticipate any
changes made to the proposed goals and objectives. There will be new
committee preference forms handed out at the February Council meeting
that will give a description of the new commiftees with the new committee
names. The Executive Committee will review the preference forms at their
March meeting and will decide on new standing committee chairs and the
members who will be in each of the three committees.

V. Ad Hoc Committee Updates:

Five Year Plan Ad Hoc — Adonis Brown reiterated the progress made
earlier in the meeting and stated that the committee will set a date to meet
prior to the February Council meeting.

L
Pl



Governance Ad Hoc — Azell Reeves and JoAnn Toomey updated the
members that the next meeting will be scheduled soon to review the
updated policies with the Executive Committee and then the full Council.

Membership and Development Ad Hoc ~ Carrie Ambrose stated that the:
committee will schedule a new meeting to review membership and discuss
possible member development ideas.

Communications Ad Hoc — Chris Egan updated the members that the
committee continues to look at the website for accessibility and they have
scheduled another meeting for February 4, 2016.

Vi. Review February Council Meeting draft agenda:

The members reviewed the draft agenda and suggested that the
new/revised committee preference forms, along with a brief description of
each committee, be put in the committee packets for the members to
review and fill out after the discussion in the afternoon. Adonis Brown
offered to be the interim chair of the Disability Systems Change Committee
in February.

VI. Other:

Chris Egan informed the members that we are looking to continue member
orientations with at least two dates this year. A possible member
development opportunity will be to have a parliamentarian come in to
review with members the role of boards, etc. He updated the members that
the year-end reports to AIDD were submitted on time and that staff have
also been working on a DHHS Strategic Plan/SWOT analysis that is due to
the department on January 13", A copy will be sent to the members.

It was suggested by |. Azell Reeves that we have webinars or create
YouTube videos that can be seen across the state of the impact NCCDD
has had on initiatives and outreach and that it be emphasized that we are
also the funders — especially on initiatives that are ending.

Ron Reeve adjourned the meeting.

13



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities (NCCDD)
FINAL
Executive Committee Minutes
Wednesday, March 30, 2016
10:30 AM = 12:30 PM

Members Present: Carrie Ambrose, Katie Holler, Ron Reeve, |. Azell
Reeves

Members Absent: Adonis Brown, Anna Cunningham

Staff Present: Chris Egan, JoAnn Toomey

Guests Present: Trish Farnham, Jack Rogers, Peggy Terhune

Chairman Ron Reeve welcomed the members to the meeting.

l. Approval of Minutes:
The draft minutes of the January 11, 2016 Executive Committee meeting
was discussed,

MOTION: Katie Holler made a motion to approve the January 11, 2016
minutes. Carrie Ambrose seconded the motion. The motion was
approved.

li.  Financial Update:

JoAnn Toomey reviewed the financial reports for the NCCDD. There was
discussion on the 2014-2016 FFY balances and initiative expenditures.
Members were also provided FFYs 2017-2019 budget summaries and
detail reports as requested. Chris Egan explained fo the members the new
funding allocation formula that AIDD is using, that reduces the NCCDD
allocation back to the 2015 level for FFY 2017, to $1,976,156. The formula
is based on total population, need for services and financial need of the
state or territory. Ron asked the members if there were any queslions and
Chris Egan responded to a question regarding future passibility of changes
in the formula used by AIDD.

ili. Standing Committee Assignments and Initial Chair Assignments:
The members reviewed the recommended committee assignments and
recommended initial chair assignments and discussed the suggestion of
vice-chairs. Recommended chairs will lead their new committees during
the May meeting with a Friday vote of the members to establish chair
responsibilities. During the August meeting of the Council, the committeas

=
]



will each select a vice-chair. They reviewed and discussed the members
that expressed interest to serve as a committee chair. Chris Egan let the
members know that 90% of the committee preference forms were honored
for the member's first choice of committee with only four members
receiving their second choice.

Azell Reeves suggested that there be a meeting or call before the May
meeting to prepare the proposed chairs so that they know the
responsibilities and expectations of committee chairs; i.e. that they are
members of the Executive Committee that meet the months the Council
does not and that they lead the committee meetings and report the minuies
and motions from those meetings to the full Council. Chris and Ron will
also meet with them before the May meeting.

MOTION: Carrie Ambrose made a motion to recommend Amanda Bergen
as Chair for the Financial Asset Development Committee, Kerrie Eaker as
Chair for the Community Living Committee and Nessie Siler as Chair for
the Advocacy Development Committee. Katie Holler seconded the motion.
The motion was approved.

IV. Conference Funding Request:

The members reviewed a request from Disability Rights North Carolina to
fund one speaker for up to $1,621 for the 2016 Disability Advocacy
Conference being held April 20, 2016 at the Friday Center for Continuing
Education, Chape! Hill, NC.

MOTION: Carrie Ambrose made a motion to approve the request from
Disability Rights North Carolina for the 2016 Disability Advocacy
Conference being held April 20, 2016 at the Friday Center for Continuing
Education, Chapel Hill, NC. The request is to fund one speaker for up to
$1,621. Katie Holler seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

V. Amendment to Medical and Health Homes Initiative:

The members reviewed a request from Easter Seals UCP for a cost
extension to their Year 3 of 3 contract to extend the contract to end
December 31, 2016 with additional funding of $30,920. The members
tabled the request and asked that the request be brought to the May
Council meeting for the Community Living Committee to review and make a
recommendation.

15



VI. February Member Survey Review:

The members reviewed the electronic and hard copy surveys submitted by
Council members. They agreed that they were favorable overall, and most
were very pleased with the current venue for the quarterly meetings.

Vi. Ad Hoc Committee Updates:

Governance Ad Hoc — Peggy Terhune joined the call at this time and with
Azell Reeves they discussed the process of updating and streamlining 11
policies and one new policy that are ready to be presenied to the full
Council in May. There will be cne more new policy on Council Meetings
that will be finalized for the Executive Commiitiee to review in April.

Communications Ad Hoc — Chris Egan reminded the members that O'Neil
Communications will be updating the full Council in May for continuation
funding. The website is looking very good and Spanish translation is now
available for most sections within the website. There has been good press
for the NCCDD recently in conjunction with Developmental Disabilities
Awareness Month with the Time Warner piece on the Beach wheelchairs at
Fort Macon State Park and an article in the Triangle Business Journal in
January.

Chris alse reviewed with the members the communications ad hoc
committee recommendations for additional awards the Council might want
consider adding with the annual awards ceremony. The members felt that
the two we currently have are prestigious and more awards might “water
down"” the current awards. The recommendation by the EC is to use social
media efforts to highlight successes and examples of accomplishments.

VIll. Discussion of Ending Initiatives:

Chris Egan reminded the members that the ASLiDD and Partners in
Policymaking contracts will be ending September 30, 2016. Ideas for a
strategic plan for advocacy were discussed and how these programs can
be rmore of a reflection of the Council. They'd like this put on the agenda
for the Advocacy Development Committee in May.

IX. Preparations for Secretary Brajer in April:

Secretary Brajer will be coming to the NCCDD office for the next Executive
Committee meeting on April 18" from 10:00 to 11:15 a.m. Members are
encouraged to come to this meeting in person. They will start at 9:00 a.m.

16



to begin the business portion of the meeting and will continue after
Secretary Brajer ieaves if there are more agenda items to cover.

X. Review May Council Meeting Draft Agenda:

The members reviewed the draft agenda and made some suggestions
including starting the Thursday meeting at 9:00 a.m. to include another
break during the day and (o include other agenda items. They made a
recommendation to reach out to Dee Jones who is the Chief Operating
Officer of the new DHHS Division on Health Benefits to provide information
about the NCCDD and to invite her to a future Council meeting.

Xl.  Supported Living RFA Draft:

Trish Farnham joined the call and updated members on a potential
collaboration between DMA/MFP and the NCCDD on Supported Living.
Ms. Farnham provide a brief overview of the history and efforts of the
federally funded Money Follows the Person (MFP) in NC. The opportunity
for collaboration focuses on expanding the knowledge and capacity for
supported living for people with I/DD in a person-centered inclusive
manner. This opportunity coincides with the new Innovations Waiver
service definition that will better support inclusive living situations. This
also complements the direction of CMS regarding new expectations for
horme and community elements associated with the use of waiver funds for
people with I/DD. Ms. Farnham explained that the funds identified for this
initiative come from the enhanced federal match savings to the state that
are to be used for efforts to increase community living options. This
potential initiative complements Goal 2 of the new Five Year Plan goals
and objectives. The NCCDD, as a partner in this effort could consider
funding a portion of this three-year initiative. This will be presented during
the May meeting to the members and Community Living Committee to
consider approval to draft the RFA.

XNll. Other:

Chris Egan reminded the members that the first listening session on the
1115 demonstration waiver was tonight in Raleigh. He aiso let the
members know that staff are meeting reguiarly on the Five Year Plan and
will continue working with the Five Year Plan Ad Hoc Committee to
complete the remaining components of the plan, and staff will include the
timeline calendar in the May mail out.

17



It is also time for the Executive Director’'s performance review and they will
get in touch with Anna Cunningham to review the survey from last year and
see if any changes might be needed before sending to the Council

members. This process should be completed no later than the end of May.

Since the chart of current initiatives in the new committees wasn't
reviewed, it will be put on the April agenda for the Executive Committee.

Ron Reeve adjourned the meeting.

18'



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities (NCCDD)
DRAFT
Executive Committee Minutes
Wednesday, March 30, 2016
10:30 AM - 12:30 PM

Members Present: Adonis Brown, Anna Cunningham, Ron Reeve, |. Azell
Reeves

Members Absent: Carrie Ambrose, Katie Holier

Staff Present: Chris Egan, Melissa Swartz, JoAnn Toomey, Yadira
Vasquez

CGuests Present: Amanda Bergen

Chairman Ron Reeve welcomed |. Azell Reeves and guest Amanda
Bergen to the meeting. The order of the agenda was rearranged to wait for

Adonis Brown and Anna Cunningham to join the meeting in order o reach
a quorum for business items.

l. Member Vacancies:

There are two upcoming member vacancies, including a Person with I/DD
and a Parent of a Person with I/DD, who will be completing their second
term on June 30, 2016. Chris Egan stated that there is a banner
prominently placed on the NCCDD website calling for new member
applications to be submitted by May 15, 2016. Staff will compile the new
applications, as well as the applications on file, that fit the current
demographic and diversity requirements. Those applications will be
presented for review to the Membership and Development Ad Hoc
Committee and the Executive Committee once the deadline for new
applications has passed. Recommendations for the vacant positions will
be made to Boards and Commissions in June, 20186.

lil. Initiatives in New Committees:

A chart of the current NCCDD initiatives in their new committee
assignments was reviewed and discussed. |t was suggested that a similar
list be included in the May Council meeting mail out.

At this point in the meeting, a quorum was reached.

19



. Approval of Minutes:
The draft minutes of the March 30, 2016 Executive Commiitee meeting was
discussed.

MOTION: Adonis Brown made a motion io approve the March 30, 2016
minutes. Azell Reeves seconded the motion. The motion was approved

IV. Financial Update:

Yadira Vasquez reviewed the financial reports for the NCCDD. There was
discussion on the 2014-2016 FFY balances and initiative expenditures.
Members were also provided FFYs 2017-2019 budget summaries and
detail reports as requested. Anna Cunningham requested that an extra
column be added in the Current and Projected Budgets and Expenses by
Federal Fiscal Years spreadsheet that would total the unexpended
balances that were pending and available. Ron asked the members if
there were any other questions or comments and there were none.

{V. Conference Funding Request:

The members reviewed a request from the Triangle Disability Awareness
Council for their conference entitled "Hidden: The Siient Pain of Mental
lliness” being held June 27, 2016 in Chapel Hill. After much discussion, it
appeared that the conference was not going to have enough focus on
people with intellectual and other developmental disabilittes. The members
agreed that staff should reach out to the agency to learn more about them,
to discuss possible future collaborations and to extend an invitation for
them to apply again in the future if the topic would relate more to the goals
and objectives of the NCCDD.

MOTION: Anna Cunningham made a motion to not approve the request
from the Triangle Disability Awareness Council for their conference being
held June 27, 2016 in Chapel Hill, NC. Adonis Brown seconded the
motion. The motion carried.

Vi. Governance Ad Hoc Committee Updates:

The members reviewed the last policy brought forth by the Governance Ad
Hoc Committee titled "Council Meetings” that was created as a result of the
by-laws being streamlined. There was some discussion on the section that
stated, “A quorum shall consist of a majority of the active NCCDD

20



members, including agency Designated Aiternates. Any final action of the
NCCDD shall require a majarity vote of those present and voting.” Anna
Cunningham felf that it should state thai the final action or decision should
be by a majority vote and have a 60% majority of the members present be
members with /DD and family members of people with I/DD since we are
to be made up of 60% of individuals with I/DD and family members of
people with I/DD as per the DD Act Final Rule of 2000. Staff will research
this more and bring the policy back to the Executive Committee at their
meeting in June. The other 12 policies will be presented to the full Council
for their approval at the May meeting.

Vil. Review May Council Meeting Draft Agenda:
The members reviewed the draft agenda and made some final suggestions
that staff will make to include in the May mail out.

VIil. Other:

Chris Egan informed the members that staff are participating in a “friendly
audit” with the DHHS Office of Internal Audit (OIA). They met with staff
from OIA last week and confirmed that information and documentation is
being shared, as weli as explained and understood, when requested.

Ron Reeve adjourned the meeting.

21



Morth Carolina

NC



Council

Minutes

FPNCCDD

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

23



24

North Carslina



DRAFT
NC COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Quarterly Council Meeting Minutes
Hilton Garden Inn, Cary NC

February 12, 2016

MEMBERS PRESENT: Carcline Ambrose, Karen Armstrong, Amanda Bergen, Eric Zechman {for
Wayne Black), Wendy Boyd, Adonis Brown, Lisa Byrd, Mya Lewis (for Courtney Cantrell),
Christina Carter, Eric Chavis, Kerri Eaker, Mary Edwards, jason Faircloth, Crystal Foreman, Deb
Goda {for Sandra Terrell}, Joshua Gettinger, Michael Groves, Katie Holler, Dreama McCoy {for
William Hussey), Rep. Verla insko, Wing Ng, Desiree Peterson, Cheryl Powell, Joseph Piven, Ron
Reeve, |. Azell Reeves, Clare Shocket, Nessie Siler, Vicki Smith, lim Swain, Kelly Woodall

MEMBERS ABSENT: Anna Cunningham, Lourdes Fernandez, Dave Richard, Peggy Terhune,
Senator Tommy Tucker, David White, Paula Woodhouse

STAFF PRESENT: Chris Egan, Cora Gibson, Steve Strom, Melissa Swartz, JoAnn Toomey, Yadira
Vasquez, Philip Woodward, Letha Young

CONTRACTORS/GRANTEES PRESENT: Karen Hamilton, Gordon O’Neill, Devika Rao

GUESTS: Alexander Bergen, Catherine Bergen, Karen Cook, Danielle Matula, Renate
Macchirole, Denise Sumiel, Sumer Sutton, Mai Lee Vue

WELCOME AND ATTENDANCE

Chairman Ron Reeve asked that any Council member with a potential conflict of interest
regarding any item on the agenda, to identify that conflict, for decumentation in the minutes
and acted upon, as necessary. He alsc reminded members of the emergency exits at the Hilton
Garden inn. JoAnn Toomey then conducted the roll call.

APPROVAL OF COUNCIL MINUTES

Ron Reeve asked for approval of the November 2015 Council meeting minutes. A copy of the
minutes had previously been made available to Council members.

MOTION: Amanda Bergen made a moticn to approve the minutes. Adonis Brown seconded
the motion. The motion was approved.

FINANCE REPORT

Ron Reeve reminded members to complete their reimbursement forms and submit them to
staff. Mr. Reeve gave a brief report on the financial status of the Council. A copy of the report
had previously been made available and reviewed with Council members. Due to the incoming
inclement weather, Mr. Reeve announced that there would be a shift in the agenda to address
the new business and committee reports so that members could leave early if desired.

25



NEW BUSINESS

MOTION: Eric Chavis made a motion for continuation funding for the In-House Council
Development Fund Initiative for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for an amount up to
$40,000 with match requirement waived since this is an in-house initiative of the Council.
Adonis Brown seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

MOTION: Crystal Foreman made a motion for continuation funding for the In-House Public
Policy Initiative for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for an amount up to $60,000 with
match requirement waived since this is an in-house initiative of the Council. Dreama McCoy
seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

MOTION: Adonis Brown made a motion for continuation funding for the In-House Conference
Funding Initiative for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for an amount up to $24,000
with match requirement waived since this is an in-house initiative of the Council. Katie Holler
seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

AD HOC COMMITTEE UPDATES
Crystal Foreman gave a brief update on the Governance Ad Hoc Committee.

Caroline Amborse gave a brief update on the Membership and Development Ad Hoc
Committee.

Crystal Foreman gave a brief update on the Communications Ad Hoc Committee.

Adonis Brown gave an update on the Five Year State Plan Development Ad Hoc Committee.
The following are motions presented on the floor for Council consideration:

MOTION: Nessie Siler made a motion to approve the 2017-2021 State Plan Goals and
Objectives. After review of the summary received from the 45-day public comment period that
ended January 15, 2016, it was found that there was overwhelming support of the goals and
objectives as presented. Eric Chavis seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

MOTION: Adonis Brown made a motion to realign the three standing commiittees of the
Council to Community Living, Financial Asset Development and Advocacy Development. Clare
Shocket seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

OLD BUSINESS

There was no old business.

26



EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REPORT

The Executive Committee members met December 8, 2015, December 18, 2015 and January
11, 2016. Copies of the minutes were made available to Council members. Mr. Reeve asked
each member to review the minutes.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Mr. Reeve requested presentation of committee reports. Please refer to the committee
minutes for a detailed description of the committee’s work, including motions made in
committee,

DISABILITY SYSTEMS CHANGE COMMITTEE

Acting committee chair Adonis Brown presented the Disability Systems Change Committee
report. There were no motions presented on the floor.

COMMUNITY CAPACITY BUILDING COMMITTEE

Committee chair |. Azell Reeves presented the Community Capacity Building Committee Report.

Updated information concerning their initiatives were given. Chair Azell thanked all committee

members and staff. The following are motions presented on the floor for Council consideration:

MOTION: Joshua Gettinger made a motion to approve continuation funding to the Alliance of
Disability Advocates, a state independent living center, for the NCCDD “ADA Network Fiscal
Agent Initiative” for up to $40,000, with a 25% required minimum match, for the period of July
1, 2016 — June 30, 2017 for year two of three. Eric Chavis seconded the motion. The motion
was approved. Desiree Peterson recused herself since she is on the Alliance of Disability
Advocates board.

MOTION: Jim Swain made a motion for continuation funding for the In-House NC ADA
Network Initiative for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for an amount up to $60,000
with match requirement waived since this is an in-house initiative of the Council. Adonis
Brown seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

ADVOCACY AND LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE

Committee chair Caroline Ambrose presented the Advocacy and Leadership Committee report.
She gave a brief update on the discussions from the Thursday meeting. There were no motions
presented on the floor.

PUBLIC COMMENTS

Crystal Foreman wanted to clarify her comment about homeownership through Habitat for
Humanities and share her experience. Crystal also commented on the use of the Council
Development Fund, stating that when members use it they should come back to the Council
and give a verbal report about the conference they attended.

27



LEGISLATIVE UPDATES

Representative Verla Insko gave a brief legislative update on Medicaid reform and answered
questions from the members.

DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Chris Egan provided his report to the members with a focus on the importance of relationships
{a component of Goal 2 of the newly adopted five-year plan goals and objectives). He reviewed
the National Core Indicators data and Personal Qutcome Measures data of the Council on
Quality and Leadership. In adidition, he provided information demonstrating the link between
good health (positive health outcomes) and relationships. Mr. Egan concluded by wishing all
members a happy Valentine’s day.

Ron Reeve asked for a motion for the meeting to adjourn. Eric Chavis made a motion to
adjourn the meeting. Amanda Bergen seconded the motion, Meeting was adjourned.

Approved:
Ron Reeve, Chair
Date:

28



DRAFT FEBRUARY 11, 2016 COMMITTEE MINUTES
ADVOCACY & LEADERSHIP COMMITTEE*
COMMUNITY CAPACITY BUILDING COMMITTEE*

DISABILITY SYSTEMS CHANGE COMMITTEE*

*NCCDD COMMITTEES BEFORE REORGANIZATION AND REALIGNMENT WITH
FFY 2017 STATE PLAN GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

29



30

North Carolina



Advocacy and Leadership Committee
DRAFT MINUTES

Thursday, February 11, 2016
1:15pm-3.:00pm

Hilton Garden Inn Cary, NC

Members Present: Caroline Ambrose, Karen Armstrong, Rick Zechman, Lisa Byrd,
Mary Edwards, Crystal Foreman, Katie Holler, Cheryl Powell, Clare Shocket

Members Absent: Lourdes Fernandez, Michael Groves, Senator Tommy Tucker

Staff in Attendance: Melissa Swartz, Chris Egan, Yadira Vasquez

Guests: Naomi Bell

Welcome and Introductions:

Chairperson Caroline Ambrose called the meeting to order, welcomed all members and
provided an opportunity for members to introduce themselves.

Approval of Minutes:
Mary Edwards made a motion to approve the November 2015 Advocacy and
Leadership Committee minutes. Cheryl Powell seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Informational Session:

The Advocacy and Leadership Committee had a fairly light agenda with only the motion
to approve minutes needed by the committee.

Chris Egan, NCCDD executive director presented information about the Department of
Health and Human Services (DHHS) Division of Medical Assistance Informational
Sessions, collaboration activities among the NC Administration on Intellectual and
Developmental Disabilities (AIDD) Network, and NCCDD Internship activities. Chris also
led discussion about future initiative funding availability aligned with information shared
during the state plan funding availability session.

Committee members discussed initiatives of the Advocacy and Leadership Commitiee
in their final year of funding. Partners in Policymaking year 3 of 3 ends September 30,
2016 and the 24 month initiative Advancing Strong Leaders in the Developmental
Disabilities ends December 31, 2016. Available funds projections do not include these
two initiatives and A & L Committee members are encouraged to consider future options
for initiatives in the area of leadership training.

Chris shared details of discussions with the NC AIDD Network partner agencies,
Disability Rights North Carolina (DRNC) and the University of North Carolina at Chapel

31



Hill Carolina Institute for Developmental Disabilities (UNC CIDD) about collaborative
efforts for advancing self-advocacy activities in NC.

Lastly, Chris shared information about the new NCDDD interns. Both interns are
students at University of North Carolina Greensboro (UNCG). Denise Sumiel is a self-
advocate participating in the UNCG Beyond Academics program and Mai Lee Vue is
pursuing a Master’s degree in Social Work at UNCG.

Motion to adjourn was made by Claire Shocket. The motion was seconded by Mary
Edwards. The motion carried.

W
(2



Community Capacity Building
DRAFT Minutes

February 11, 2016

1:15 p.m. — 3:00 p.m.

Hilton Garden Inn, Cary, NC

Members Present: |. Azell Reeves (Chairperson}, Anna Cunningham, Jason
Faircloth, Joshua Gettinger, Kerri Bennett-Eaker, Jim Swain, Amanda Bergen,
Deb Goda for Sandra Terrell, Dreama McCoy for Bill Hussey

Members Absent: Representative Verla Insko, David White

Guests: Danielle Matula, Catherine Bergen, Alexander Bergen

StaffiContractors: Karen Hamilton, Jill Hinton, Devika Rao, JoAnn Toomey,
Yadira Vasquez, Philip Woodward

Welcome and Introduction:

Chairperson |. Azell Reeves welcomed all members. Members introduced
themselves, and the meeting began.

Approval of Minutes: Chairperson |. Azell Reeves asked for approval of the
November 19, 2015 minutes.

MOTION: Jim Swain made a motion to accept the November 19, 2015
Community Capacity Building Committee minutes. Amanda Bergen seconded
the motion. Azell asked if there were any recommended changes to the minutes.

Danielle Matula commented that in the paragraph where it states she shared that
their "director position” has been vacant for some time, it should have said their
"Section Chief position.”

Dreama McCoy and Amanda Bergen seconded the motion to approve the
changes to the minutes. The motion was approved.

Old Business:

Azell Reeves asked Philip Woedward to give an overview of the ACCESS North
Carolina travel guidebook/information. The legisiature eliminated the DVRS
program in 2015, so there were no more ACCESS quides printed. There is now
an on-line website at: www.nc.gov/services/access-north-carolina. Joshua
Gettinger asked if there was anywhere in our new Five Year Plan that this could
fall under. Azell said that it was possible it could fall under that the new goal of
Community Living. The question was could DVRS transfer the information to
another person or agency? There is no longer a general statute protecting the
program. There were many ideas about using an app to make the travel guide
available. It cost $110,000 for 10,000 copies back in 2012.

33



Based on the agenda, Azell asked if this was something the members wanted to
recommend as a topic to be considered as a future RFA. She also stated that
there could be other collaborations with other state agencies as well as what we
have in-house: O’'Neill Communications.

The members considered recommending that the O’Neill Communications group
and the NCCDD staff explore the possibilities of creating an app or putting the
ACCESS North Carolina bookiet on our website. They will provide the CCB
members an update on progress of locking at the benefits of both suggestions,
Members should send their comments to O’Neili Communications or staff, and
they will compile the recommendations for this committee.

Devika Rao stated that they did look at this as a result of conversations in the
Community Capacity Building Committee in November 2015. It looked like a
website would be the better start rather than on desktops or mobile apps. Kerrie
Eaker agreed since most people will go to the specific website. For example:
Biltmore, parks, and other recreational opportunities.

Azell said many people with disabilities don't understand that they can access a
park or reserve a beach wheelchair, so there is a need to promote this
information.

Fiscal Report:

Yadira Vasquez updated the members with the current fiscal information.
Joshua Gettinger asked about the $714,000 and the $224,000 amounts pending
Council approval. Yadira explained that it was to fund initiatives coming up for
continuation funding approval. Anna Cunningham stated that the report was
good. Azell asked the members if there were any further questions, and there
were none.

Initiative Review/Update:

While waiting for Linda Emery to call in, Azell asked about sustainability of
Project SEARCH and if there were other agencies or programs across the state
where they could receive technical assistance from Linda Emery or Pat Keul.

Linda Emery, Project Director for the Project SEARCH initiative contracted
through Cincinnati Children’s Hospital Medical, called in and Azell welcomed her
to the meeting. Linda gave an update on the Year 2 contract that just ended and
plans for Year 3 that just began January 1, 2016. They began the initiative with
NCCDD in 2014. They have been able to meet their goals and are now in their
third year. They plan to start three more new programs. By this August 2016,
there will be12 programs operating statewide (8 through this initiative).

They were able to establish 3 the first year, 2 the second year and 3 in this final
year. Of the students that completed the program in 2014, 65% of these

W
-y



students obtained employment. They'd like to work to increase this percentage.
They recently, in January, had a statewide meeting, and it was an enthusiastic
group with people supporting Project SEARCH from DVRS, schools, agencies,
and businesses. It was a large group of people addressing strategies for young
people with I/DD to get employment. Linda informed the CCB members that they
would like to increase family involvement to help implement Project SEARCH
programming. The types of jobs range from working full time and part time.

Azell asked if there were any questions from the members. Deb Goda asked
how many jobs were full-time. Linda said that they tracked how many hours
interns were working and thought they worked at least 16-20 hours or more.
Joshua Gettinger asked if this project was sustainable to go on after this third
year. He asked what kind of support would be needed. Linda stated the
technical assistance and licensing have been supported by the Council so that
the operation of the program year after year is minimal other than space needed.
He asked how it could be spread more around the state. She stated that Project
SEARCH grows organically — meaning with the sites already operating, other
programs hear about it and start up. She stated the Council may want to
consider some initial seed dollars to have statewide training more sustainable; to
have a staie-level team, someone from DVRS, the Council, and DP! who could
organize the ongoing training and how communities can learn about Project
SEARCH, including marketing.

Deb Goda asked if the 34% (actually 35%) of students who aren't employed are
still actively locking for a job and are being supported. Linda said that they do
continue to support them and that those students graduating in May of 2014 did
get jobs. Those graduating in May 2015 have had ongoing support to find
employment. The VR Counselor drives the decision-making of next steps. Anna
Cunningham asked with regards to the placement process; one thing they are
finding the need for placement opportunities with the same skill set the students
gained. Was this something they’ve done in the past or that could be an add-on
rather than waiting for graduation? Linda said they do not have to wait for
graduation, and they encourage the young people to actively seek employment
while attending the program. The ongoing training is very important to explain
how the process should work and how to start job development while the
students are in Project Search. The model is relatively new in N.C., so she feels
there does need to be continued support to see the collaboration continue.

Azell thanked Linda for the update, and Linda stated she really appreciated the
committee’s questions and support and is always open to answering other
questions.

Azell stated that she didn't hear about the greater collaborations with other
agencies. She talked about Pat Keul who provides technical assistance. Do we
have someone to provide technical assistance? Joshua Gettinger asked how
this affected DVRS. Jim Swain said that there are some concerns and issues

35



regarding the cutcomes. The members think that maybe they should be pushed
outside their comfort zone to collaborate more with businesses rather than just in
hospitals and larger models. Anna Cunningham said she has seen the program
in High Point and stated that there is another similar program at UNC-Chapel Hill.
She mentioned the quaiity of the job coach and the quality of the interactions in a
hospital setting. Dreama McCoy talked about the great program they have in
Charlotte with the Sheriff. She asked how they have they built capacity in other
states? Jim Swain said that DVR does have contracts with some of these
agencies/programs. He also said that the public can go in Open Window to see
the contracis out there in DHHS. Kerri Eaker stated that sustainability cannot be
discussed in the last year of a grant. As we go forward, it should be discussed
sooner (possibly in the RFA). She thought there are a lot of agencies already
doing something similar to Project SEARCH, and they should put their money on
the table. Azell suggested that if members have additional comments to send
them to staff. Dreama asked if they could submit some kind of timeline of pians
for sustainability. Anna asked how they can maximize sociai capital.

Continuation Funding for NC ADA Network and Fiscal Agent/intermediary
initiatives:

Since it was presented earlier to the Council, Azell asked if the members had any
other questions for Karen Hamilton, NCCDD contractor, who made a
presentation earlier to the full Council about the ADA Network initiative and their
partnership with the Southeast ADA Center.

Azell said there were two cards received from the Council members. First
question, “What was being done in Sampson County?” Karen said they worked
with the Big Blue Store in Sampson County with 35 employees. The topic was
that they were discriminating against people with service animals. The result is
they are no longer doing this since the ADA Network provided training to the
store.

Second question was, “How of who do they coordinate with?" Karen said that
they match people with other groups that have more experience to train other
collaborators. They pull in collabarators from the community they are working in —
depending on what the issue is.

Anna Cunningham asked about the new regulations regarding service animals
and how do they keep up with all the information that comes out? Karen said
that is why their collaboration with the Southeast ADA Center is 50 important.
Joshua Gettinger asked about the oldest groups they have and how they've
evolved and become less dependent. Karen spoke about how the Alliance of
Disability Advocates began as a small grassroots program and is now a center
for independent living. Azell asked how many staff there are to moniter and work
with the grassroots programs. The ADA Center provides ADA training, technical
assistance, publications (for readability} and links to national initiatives and
collaborations. Alliance of Disability Advocates is the fiscal manager.

[t
o



MOTION: Joshua Gettinger made a motion to approve continuation funding to
the Alliance of Disability Advocates, a state center for independent living, for the
NCCDD “ADA Network Fiscal Agent Initiative” for up to $40,000, with a 25%
required minimum match, for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for year
two of three. Jason Faircloth asked if they did any work with school systems.
Azell reminded the members that this was a grassroots effort for people with
disabilities. Anna Cunningham asked if they were responsible fiscally, and the
answer was yes. Kerri Eaker asked if there could be more staff to help with the
NCADA Network. The CCB members asked if this recommendation could be
made to the NCCDD Executive Committee and the NCCDD Administration. Anna
Cunningham seconded the motion. The motion was approved.

MOTION: Jim Swain made a motion for continuation funding for the In-House
NC ADA Network Initiative for the period of July 1, 2016 - June 30, 2017 for an
amount up to $60,000 with match requirement waived since this is an in-house
initiative of the Council. Joshua Gettinger seconded the motion. Amanda
Bergen talked about the gentleman from Rocky Mount who came last year as a
result of this project, and the members agreed they are getting their money's
worth. The motion was approved.

Discussion of Potential RFA Topics

Please refer back to the potential RFA discussion earlier in the minutes under
Old Business. Azell also reminded the CCB members to refer back to the
minutes dated November 19, 2015 for potential RFA topics.

Wrap Up and Reminders:

Chairperson |. Azell Reeves reminded members to check their packets and fill
out the committee preference forms, the conference announcements, and the
minutes from meetings that didn’t make it into the mail-out. She asked if
members are interested, to please respond promptly when they receive
notification from Cora Gibson, NCCDD staff member, regarding upcoming
conferences or other events.

Announcements/Adjournment:

Azell asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Deb Goda and Anna
Cunningham made a motion to adjourn. Dreama McCoy seconded the motion.
Motion carried. Chairperson |. Azell Reeves adjourned the meeting at 3:05 p.m.

37



Disability Systems Change Committee
DRAFT MINUTES

Thursday, February 11, 2016

118 gm0 300 L.

Hilten Garden Inn, Cary, NC

Members Present: Adonis Brown, Wendy Boyd, Eric Chavis, Christina Carter,
Joe Piven, Desiree Peterson, Mya Lewis, Wing Ng, Vicki Smith, Nessie Siler,
Verla Insko, Paula Woodhouse, Ron Reeve

Members Absent: Kelly Woodall Beauchamp, Dave Richard, Peggy Terhune
Staff in Attendance: Steve Strom, Chris Egan, Yadira Vasquez

Guests: Nancy Warren, Kate Walton, Elizabeth Kahn, Jill Hinton, Karen Luken,
Cas Shearin

Introduction:

Welcome: Adonis Brown called the meeting to order, welcomed all members.

Mr. Brown called for a motion to approve the November 2015 Disability Systems

Change Committee minutes. Eric Chavis made a motion to approve the minutes.

Nessie Siler seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Mr. Brown called for a motion to approve the December 8, 2015 Disability
Systems Change Committee special meeting minutes. Vicki Smith made a
motion that the minutes be amended to include that the motion for continuation
funding reflect the inclusion of the three deliverables as contingencies. Eric
Chavis seconded the motion. Motion carried.

Fiscal Update:

Council Staff Yadira Vasquez presented a review of the Disability Systems
Change initiative budgets and explained the details. Ms. Vasquez’s fiscal update
provided budget information on the initiatives, "Adult Care Home Transition",
“‘Medical and Health Home with I/DD” "Medicaid Reform Stakeholder
Engagement”, and “Rethinking Guardianship”. Following the presentation of the
initiative budgets, Ms. Vasquez presented the current and projected budgets and
expenses by Federal Fiscal Years showing the awards by year, identified
initiatives pending Council approval, and the unexpended balances in each fiscal
year, Mr. Brown thanked Ms. Vasquez's on behalf of the Committee for her
report.

38'



Initiative Updates:

Rethinking Guardianship Initiative year 2

Mr. Strom reviewed the purpose of the Guardianship initiative and the
deliverables of the initiative. He introduced Linda Kendall-Fields from the Jordan
Institute who was recently hired and will be the key person from UNC working on
the Guardianship initiative. Ms. Kendall-Fields joined the meeting via Skype to
provide an update on the beginning of the second year of the initiative. Ms.
Kendall-Fields provided information on the January Guardianship stakeholder
meeting and the progress made foward the common agenda, the pilot project
applications, and the assignments of the three workgroups. Members had
several questions and comments regarding the initiative. After Ms. Kendall-
Fields’ presentation, Nancy Warren and Kate Walton reviewed the Year 1 report
and provided a forum for members to ask questions about findings from the

report. Mr. Brown thanked Ms. Warren and Ms. Walton for their work and the
presentation to the members.

Medical Health Home Initiative year 3

Mr. Brown introduced Karen Luken to give an update on the latest work of the
Medical Health Home initiative. Ms. Luken provided an update on the latest
activities which included a dental clinic, a health care summit with
representatives from 4 other states, as well as their ongoing work with two
MCOs, CCNC, and leading CAP stakeholder meetings that have been informing
the Department and the Division during the work on Medicaid reform. The

members of the Disability Systems Change committee thanked Ms. Luken for her
work.

Adult Care Home Transition Initiative year 3

Mr. Brown introduced Cas Shearin from DRNC to give an update on the activities
for the final year of the Adult Care Home initiative. The presentation provided a
graphic depiction of the need to create a blueprint to transition individuals with
I/DD from Adult Care Homes and the challenges to support individuals once they
were in the community. Members had questions and expressed cohcerns over
the individuals who were supported as part of the pilot program of the initiative
and the condition of the placements they were leaving to enter the community.
Representative Insko asked for a copy of the report and reminded members that
not all Adult Care Homes were subpar. Vicki Smith informed the group that
DRNC will have the final report ready in August and a decision will be made on

how the findings in the report will be used. The members thanked Ms. Shearin
for her presentation.

39



Wrap Up and Reminders:

Mr. Strom reminded members that an update on the Stakeholder Engagement
initiative was included in the Council packet and asked members to review the
materials and send questions to him about the Stakeholder Engagement
initiative.

Following the discussion and action on the initiatives, Mr. Strom asked Mr. Brown
and Nessie Siler to provide a brief overview of the new Five Year Plan and the
Council committees. Ms. Siler asked the Disability Systems Change members to
review the new committee names and missions and to wait until the presentation
at 3:30 before making a committee prefence.

Before the meeting was adjourned, Mr. Strom asked Mya Lewis to give an

update on the upcoming listening sessions. Ms. Lewis reminded the members
that the upcoming listening sessions are on the Division and Council websites
and encouraged members to attend one of the listening sessions in their area.

Mr. Brown asked members to complete their travel forms and give to Cora
Gibson. Mr. Brown thanked the members for their input and called for a motion
to adjourn. Eric Chavis made the motion to adjourn. Wing Ng seconded the
motion. Motion carried. The meeting was adjourned. .

£
(=



Financial Asset

Development
Committee

. =
. J.:._".' i ,.- ) u I_E_:I
eSS NCCDD
g § A
TIRE - - ;
1§ ;

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities



L ¥

MNorth Carolina

NC



May 12, 2016

4:00 p.m. = 5:30 p.m,
Hilton Garden Inn, Cary, NC

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

Financial Asset Development Committee Agenda

4:00 p.m. ~ 3:15 p.s.

Introduction

4:35 p.m. — 4:55 p.m.

e —

(update)

Amanda Bergern
e Welcome
Initiative Updates and Motion to Approve
Continuation Funding
4:15 p.m. — 4:35 p.m. Learning & Earning After High Schoal Megan Mclavghiin,

Weslern Caroling Liniversiy

Upward to Financial Stability Michas! Roush,

{miction to approve continuation funding) Nationa! Ofsability fnstitute (NOT)

4:55 p.m. — 5:15 p.m. Project SEARCH Linga Emery,
(sustainability discussion) Umiversity of Cincinnali Children’s

Hospital Medical Center

Fat Ked,

N Pm_.f:! SEARCH Subcontractor

5:15 p.m. = 5:25 p.m. New Business Cormmittos members
5:25 p.m. - 5:30 p.m. Wrap Up and Reminders Amanda Bergen

« Completion of Financial Forms
» Reminder: August 11-12, 2016 Councli
meeting in Cary at Hilton Garden inn

Caroline Ambrose
Adonis Brown
Anna Cunningham
Crystal L. Foreman

Wing Ng. M.D.
Senator Tommy Tucker
David White

Faula Woodhouse

Staff: Philip Woodward

Wayne Black; Alternate: Jack Rogers

Bil Hussey; Alternate: Dreama McCoy

Dave Richard, Deputy Secretary; Alternate: VACANT
Jim Swain; Alternate: Gina Price

Financial Asset Development Committee
Amanda Bergen: Recommended Chair

Parent of Child with DD

Individial with DD

Agency: Div. of Social Services

Individua! with DO
Parent of Child wiath DD
Indiviciual with DD

Agency: Dept. Public Instruction

Parent af Child with DD

Agency: DHHS
Agency: Div. of Voc. Rehabilitation

Legisiative Represeniative
Parent of Child with DD
Parent of Child with DD

43



Iﬂn[ll

- 201 J_,hi;fl_;f-, eNCCDD

——— o —— = f if 1 i' Mnrthfa'rnlmal:_-: uncil on
J Dvelepmanlal Dienbiliti

Upward to Financial Stabi[ity

System Gap'

-'h!-l ||-":\'f\.-' E ;‘h b.'

" .-. 2" ik{h il ¥
: s

gw

Imtiative
Goals and
Timeline

Description
of Activities

Outcomes
to Date

.| 'L } |8

Start Date; 2014

Morih Carolinlans with intellectus and other developmental disabilities (/DD) struggie 1o gel by, mak
ends meel and be pan of the mainstream.

Only 30% of North Canolina residants with disabilities ane working compared to 70% of non-disabled
paers,

bone individuals with disahities (30%) live in poverly compared io those without disabitias (14%).

bany individuals with dgisabilifes have naver managed a budget, appled for an assistive 1echmobogy Inan
or undersiood how to build assets.

Approximately 50% of adults with disabilibes do nol use banking services, and nearly 50% of
people with disabdities have no savings.

e e —— = —— PE—— = — —

Jdﬂl‘ltiﬁr and ulilizs sirategies ko equip mdividuals with financial knowledgo.

Improve collaboralion bebeeen the disabdity and financial stabity communities be improve the financial
heaith of Norh Canolina residents with /DD, thair famiies and other key slakeholders.

Dasign a robusl maenu of acivities (o intagrale financial stability efiors inlo axisting disability services.

Levaraga current best praclices, develop a comprehansiva plan, and launch an integrated
communications iniliative to conniect individuals and families with financial resourcas.

— r—

Lipdate, expand amd rafine the curiculum matarials developed by the Mational Disabifity Institute and
tallor tha information specificadly for North Cargling residents,

Exacute “train-the-trainer” models to build the capacity of disability organizations to use the curriculum
with the tangat awdience and sustain the neaded support.

Offer incentives such a5 awerds, recognition and mentorship o the targel audience (o Increase ths use of
firvancial skills,

Laverage publiciprivate seclor partnarships 1o create a resource map and toods for indhviduals and
slakeholdars,

Staiewsde assel resource map and resourcé-mapping toodkil were crealed and disseminaled 16 over 50
disabity and financial stability organizations statewide. A Morh Caroling Asset-Building Clukde is now
availatée,

Discussed with tha 211 system af N.C. about iha possibillity of sustaining the rescurce map.

Updated and anhanced finencial Maracy and asset-building cumiculum to include new modules and fools
on ousing. employment and paying Tor secondary education.

Defined strategies for integrating financial goals withy employmant and transition goals.

Housed an Assat Summit in Cary In Octobar 2015 with 74 participants, including State Treasurer Jangl
Cowall.

Hosted four two-day “train-the-traine:” sessions in Raleigh, Greenville, Charlotte and Ashevilie in
March and April 2016

e ————— = o

Prasnota opportunitias for people with VD0 to advance econdimic sell-sufficiancy by develaping financial
Iieracy and assat-bullding skills.

Create a leading slatewide resource for individuals with DD, families, service providers and key
alakaholders in both the disability and financial stability communities in Norih Carolina,

Incregsed capacily of public and private settors lo conmdict employment and ransflion goals with
ecnomic goals.

Updated April 2016  919-850-2901 - info®@nccdd.org * www.nccdd.org

s
-



Community Living

Committee

WY P ‘ ‘
. |'|||r' = K :::::"r', N D D
| 2 , . ’ » :I 2
' B i
[ 5
|

4" North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities




46

Morth Carolina



North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

Community Living Committee Agenda - DRAFT
May 12, 2016

4:00 p.m. - 5:30 p.m.

Hilton Garden Inn Cary, NC

4:00 p.m. - 4:10 p.m. Introduction Kerri Eaker
« Welcome

Initiative Updates and Motion to
Approve Continuation Funding

4:10 p.m. — 4:30 p.m. » Guardianship Inifiative Linda Kenaall Fields,
UNC, Jordan Institute

Abby Camerarn,

4:30 p.m. — 4:50 p.m. + Emergency Preparedness Greta Herring,
(motion to approve continuation NC Dept. of Public Safety
funding)

Karen Luken,
4:50 p.m. - 5:10 p.m. e Medical/Health Home Easter Seals/UCFP

Handowuts In the foider
¢ Adult Care Homes

e

5:10 p.m. — 5:25 p.m. Informational Session Trish Farnham
» Supported Living RFA Draft Ideas

ey

5:25 p.m. — 5:30 p.m. Wrap Up and Reminders Aerrd Aker
e Completion Financial Forms
COMMUNITY LIVING COMMITTEE

Kerr Eaker: Recommended Chair Parent of Child with DD

Kelly Woodall Beauchamp Individual with DD

Lisa Byrd Individual with DD

Caurtney Cantreli; Alternate. Mya Lewis Agency: Div. of MH/DD/SAS
Christina Carter; Alternate: Andrea Misenheimer Non-Profit Agency

Joshua Gettinger Parent of Child with DD

Michael Groves Parent of Child with DD

Desiree Peterson Individual with DD

Joe Piven, M.D.; Alternate: Deb Zuver Agency: Carolina Institute for DD

|, Azell Reeves Parent of Child with DD

Vicki Smith AIDD Partner: Disability Rights NC
Peggy Terhune, Ph.D Local Non-Governmental Agency
Sandra Terrell, Alternate Deb Goda Agency: Div. of Medical Assistance

Staff: Steve Strom



JOCCHD INITIATIV 20016 e
NCCDD INITIATIVE 201¢ o o ;xjd TYNCCDI
- SRR — — 4 ! S _— - J_-Illilrn' :'Jq:'thﬂarﬂlln_a:cll:u

Emergency Preparedness for People with Intellectual

and other Developmental Disabilities (DD) Start Date: 2014

o jstem Gap' » Individuals with /DD muslt take sleps to be prepared for emengencles.

hddresced =  Preparedness offictals must ensure tha! they include petphe with digabilities in the planning, training,
T N L exercises and responas activites carried oul 8t the commumnity level,

e e L
i = North Carclina’s Division of Emergency Management (MCEM) goals are to embrace the whols commiunity
as thivy plan for, respond to, recovar from and mitigate nalural and man-made disastars.

=  Planning afforts have identifiad gaps in the areas of Communication, Maintaining Heaith, independance,
Salely and Support and fmn.a,'aurtatqon as it relates to paople with DD,

= Davelop and implemeni bast practicss in responding to individuals with 10D In a disaster siluation

Initiative
Goals and
Timeline

= Asglst indwviduals vdth /DD and thelr famifies to better plan and prepare to réspond appropriataly in an
emergency situation,

=  Faeilitate collaborstion hetween County Emergency Managemen? offices and lacal grassroots crganization:
to encoasrage joint amergency preparedness planming and inclusion of salf-advocates and family members
or participation in drill exercises.

= Make recommendations ¢ the Implemeniation Advisory Board regarding North Caroling standards for l
training for personnal supperting the /DD comruniy.

Bihn =  [estribule resources 1o educats, train and empower individuals wilh /DD and their community (includes
Description self-advocates, family members, caregivers and first responders).

of Activities = Educala and train first responders and disagter medical professionals on how to interact, respond 1o and

besl mest the needs of people with UDD in an inclushe emdranment.

=  Assisl people with VDD to enhance their involvernant in the Community Emergency Responss Teams and I
volunteer disaster responsa training.

=  Addiess issues encounterad during disastars such as replacement of durable medical equipment,

* Research best practives and work with state and local government to enhance emrgancy ogaration plans I
for trensportalion efforts inclusive of people with I/DD and their familes and caregivers

Outcomes
to Date = Devaloped a pilol program 1o disiibute emergency preparedness infarrnalion to individueais wilk 1BD
through thi community-based Meals on Wheals program.

= Hired a program coordinator focused on emengency preparedness for people with VDD l

S istnbutad ihe “Show Me: A Communication Tool for Emargency Shalters” 1o respondars across the state. l

=  Linked wih 36 agencies that suppor indiiduals with disabidities and the “Ready NC™ websie to distribute
I/DD-specific disaster planning resources and polickes stalewide

= Partnared with groups such as the Red Cross o caonduct simulations and exarcises at loca! sheliers o l
ensura appropriate response for peopie with DB,

= Updated the "Ready NG websile to meel Web Content Accessibily Guidelines (WAG) 2.0 standards for
petml-e with all types of dJsabﬂltleq

= Build capacity for disaster preparation, amergency responsa and related proceduras and syﬂurns inchesive
of peopkz with /DD,

=  Ensure county emergency managers are supported in implamanting National Emerngency Management l

1 ; ﬁ Association (NEMA) raecommandations for inclusion of the enlire community, from planning to responsa.
-"1 | i . A e .

:' _.ll_ &) h_".'_'_ =  Promole collaborsion (planning, exercises and paricipation) among first respondens, emergency

I If*..'!:"..‘.:["al",' s managament and local gragsroots organizations serving people with /DD,

«  Make mcommendations to the implementation Advisory Board regarding Morth Carofina standards for
training for personnal supporing the /DD cormmunity

f
1

Updated April 2016 919-850-2901 + info@nccdd.org * www.nccdd.org




Advocacy
Development

Committee

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

E_:I -‘- F ey
o= e, i o b
S, FEY F PR ot
4 i1 bh'r ) ] ':._ i g .-l e b
a L "L o
& ¥ . J ‘ £ &
Fal
A




50

North Carolina



North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

Advocacy Development Committee Agenda

May 12, 2016
4:00 p.m. ~ 5:30 p.m.

Hilton Garden Inn Cary, NC

4:00 p.m. — 4:15 p.m.

Introductions
e \Welcome

Nessie Siler

4:15 p.m, — 4:45 p.m.

Continuation Funding

Bryce Coternan, FIFNC
» Sibling Support Initiative

4:45 p.m. - 5:15 p.m. FFY 2017 Leadership Development NCCDD Staff
Objectives
e Achievement History
» National and State Level Activities
» FFY 2017 Objectives
5:15 p.m,. - 5:30 p.m. Wrap Up and Reminders Nessie Siler
+ Completion of Financial Forms
ADVOCACY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE
Nessie Siler, Recommended Chair Individual with DD
Karen Armstrong Public at Large
Wendy Boyd Parent of child with DD
Eric Chavis Individual with DD
Mary Edwards DAAS
Jason Faircloth Individual with DD
Lourdes Fernandez Parent of child with DD
Katie Holler Parent of child with DD
Vacant DPS
Representative Verla Insko Legislative Representative
Vacant/Danielle Matula Division of W/C Health
Cheryl Powell Individual with DD
Clare Shocket Parent of a child with DD
Temporary Staff: Melissa Swartz
51



.;‘-:Jﬂ P ffﬂ‘ﬁ":‘ NC{. 1-}! )

: North Carol.nal “ouncit an
Deveicpments | Giisalajiieten

RN 2D 202 IGDATS End DESECTIVES

NCCDD FFY 2017 - 2021 Five-Year State Plan
To Advance the DD Act Expectations of Self-Determination, Independence, Productivity,
Integration and Inclusion in Community Life for Individuals with Intellectual and other
Developmental Disabilities (I/DD) and their Families

GOAL 3: By 2021 INCREASE ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH INTELLECTUAL
AND OTHER DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (I/DD)

More individuals with I/DD will lead and sustain self-directed lives through self-advocacy,
family advocacy and stakeholder leadership.

OBJECTIVE A: As mandated by the DD Act, increase support to statewide
self-advocacy organization(s) through leadership development and coalition
participation by:

(1} establishing or strengthening a program for the direct funding of a state self-
advocacy organization led by individuals with I/DD,

(11} supporting opportunities for individuals with 1/DD who are considered leaders to
provide leadership training to individuals with I/DD who may become leaders and,

(11} participation in cross-disability and culturally diverse leadership coalitions.

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will knowledgeably advocate and take
part in decisions that affect their lives, the lives of others and/or systems.

OBJECTIVE B: Increase individual, family, public and system knowledge, and
engagement to provide system advocacy for the financial security and
community living opportunities of individuals with I/DD

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD and their families knowledgeably
advocate and take part in decisions that affect their lives, the lives of others and/or
systems.

OBJECTIVE C: Increase Professional Development to Improve Expectations
and Supports for Individuals with VDD

Measurement: More I/DD professionals, other professionals and community
leaders will receive leadership development to support collective impact to advance
the financial security and community living opportunities of individuals with I/DD.

3of3|Page

wn
[y )



NOVEMBER 20, 2014
i,
FINAL REPORT TO THE
NC COUNCIL ON
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
S. BARTON CUTTER, JONATHAN ELLIS, MONICA ). FOSTER & MATTHEW POTTER
N.C. ADVOCACY AMBASSADOCR INITIATIVE IS A PROJECT FUNDED BY THE N.C. COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES
& ADMINISTERED BY MICHAEL MAYER, COMMUNITY RESOURCES ALLIANCE (CRA)
[

53



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The N.C. Advocacy Ambassadors, in conjunction with the Community Resource
Alliance (CRA), were charged with assessing the current state of self-advocacy
within North Carolina under a 12 month grant from the North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities (NCCDD). The Ambassadors, individuals who
themselves have disabilities, were recruited to reach out as a team to existing
grass roots advocacy organizations across the state and determine the elements
needed to ensure a robust self-advocacy movement in North Carolina.

The immediate goal of the N.C. Advocacy Ambassador Initiative team was to
identify the specific strengths and weaknesses of the existing movement and to
provide recommendations for rectifying weaknesses while bolstering existing
strengths.

Two separate surveys and extensive stakeholder interviews were used to gather
information. Results of the survey and interview process revealed that the current
state of self-advocacy is tenuous at best and that major areas of concern need to
be addressed to build a functional self-advocacy movement. Major emphasis
needs to be placed on the following areas:

s Education and training in current advocacy issues, advocacy skills, group
dynamics, collaboration, and communication

s Technical assistance for existing and emerging self-advocacy groups
towards more regular, well-attended, well-governed meetings and

“connecting them with others and to address the other needs identified by

the groups, such as using technology to support their efforts,

» [Identification of self-advocates with leadership potential and the provision
of training for them

e Support to state agencies and provider organizations to ensure access to
processes and feedback that are accessible and self-advocate-oriented

Stakeholder Perspectives (Section |)
Stakeholders were interviewed regarding their feelings about the status of self-

advocacy in North Carolina. Stakeholders interviewed ranged from self-advocates,
current and former heads of advocacy {including self-advocacy) groups,



representatives of provider organizations, disability rights advocates and
attorneys, and state employees. The interviewees were guaranteed anonymity

and thus, gave the most candid answers possible regarding the problems they
saw facing self-advocacy.

The consensus among stakeholders is that the state self-advocacy movement is
dysfunctional and ineffective due to:

e In-fighting
¢ Conflicting personal agendas
s Lack of a cohesive vision

* Lack of resources and support, both monetary and organizational

The picture of self-advocacy in North Carolina from the perspective of
stakeholders is, at present, a dire one. However, stakeholders were united in the

view that the situation could be vastly improved with adequate support provided
by the right team.

Group Survey Analysis (Section II)

During the initial phase of the Advocacy Ambassador Initiative, the Ambassadors
encountered major hurdles in identifying pockets of active advocacy, both in
group form and among unaffiliated individuals, despite reports to the contrary.
Initially, the Advocacy Ambassadors began their exploration using the most recent
membership lists from the Association of Self-Advocates of North Carolina. Yet,
only a very small sample of member groups remained active in the wake of the
only statewide self-advocacy organization’s decline in 2009.

The responding organizations, although few, admitted needing and wanting
outside assistance to:

s Continue a self-advocacy, person-first focus
e Grow their membership
» Remain viable as an organization

The low response speaks to both the low number of existing organizations and

the poor communication, engagement, and collaboration among those that do
exist.

55



The few responding leaders of these organizations generally believe they are
working with a clear vision and mission and that the membership of their
organization clearly understands their purpose for existing as a self-advocacy
organization. However, if perceptions aligned with the current environment, the
status of self-advocacy groups would be substantially better, demonstrating
major outcomes for their constituencies. In short, the outcomes do not match the
beliefs of the responding leaders.

Individual Survey Analysis {Section 1l1)

Of the 172,000 people with IDD in the state, the Ambassadors were able to make
contact with approximately 500 self-advocates, nearly 300 of whom were
communicated with directly by the AAl team, but of which only seventy-six
people responded to the individual survey despite the well-coordinated attempt
to disseminate, publicize, and encourage candid responses.

Such a low response rate does not allow for reliable and comprehensive patterns
to be determined. The responses do reflect, however, a number of important
issues:
» Lack of understanding of pertinent issues
o Unwillingness to share candid opinions and sentiments (suspected to be
because of perceived pressure or fear of retribution)
o The need for greater capacity to define personal support needs among
members of advocacy groups

Path Forward (Section IV)

To address these current realities, the Advocacy Ambassador Initiative team feels
that a multi-dimensional approach to strengthen and foster collaboration among
willing and interested parties is required to ensure that the state self-advocacy
movement becomes both unified and effective in its mission and objectives. This
includes direct collaboration with allies, such as Disability Rights North Carclina,
These efforts will also include the development of a self-sustaining business
model to facilitate these goals on a long-term basis.

Initially, a strong emphasis will be placed on forging a cohesive infrastructure to:
» Strengthen and expand self-advocacy groups

[¥4]
(23]



L2

Build communication between groups across the state
Develop coliaboration among self-advocate leaders
Facilitate self-sufficiency of the supports to sustain these efforts

To this end, our recommendations are that action be taken in four areas of most
immediate need:

Technical assistance

Communication and technology

Leadership development and education

Developing and implementing a working “business” model to continue to
provide the above services and supports

57



58

North Carolina



Ad Hoc
Committees

North Carolina Council on
Developmental Disabilities

59



60

North Carolina



NC COUNCIL ON DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES

Governance Ad Hoc Committee Meeting
March 28, 2016

Members Present: |. Azell Reeves, Peggy Terhune

Members Absent: Adonis Brown, Eric Chavis, Lourdes Fernandez, Crystal
Foreman, Desiree Peterson

Staff Present: Chris Egan, JoAnn Toomey

This open meeting was held via tele-conference. Peggy Terhune opened the
meeting. Peggy and Azell had reviewed the two new policies that were created
as a result of the by-laws being streamlined; a policy on State Plan
Requirements and a policy on Council meetings.

They agreed that the State Plan Requirements policy could be forwarded to the
Executive Committee at their meeting on March 30" — when they were reviewing
the other 11 updated policies. They did ask for the Council Meetings policy o be
revised so that it was clearer. Peggy said she would try to call in to the
Executive Commitiee when the policies were going to be discussed and
reviewed for possible presentation to the full Council in May fer their approval.

The next meeting of the Governance Ad Hoc Committee will be scheduled after
the May Council meeting. Meeting adjourned.

61



62

North Carolina

NC



Ir

NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
| 10/24/05, 1/14/13, 10/28/15
' TOPIC: Conference Funding BOARD APPROVED DATE:
} Requests

POLICY:

The Council will not entertain funding requests over $3000 per conference. The
Council will not entertain any funding requests not directly associated with a speaker
sponsored by the Council. Any exception to this rule will only be granted by the Council
under only the most extracrdinary circumstances, with justification in writing provided in
advance by the applicant, at the time of the initial request for funding. Generally, the
Council would prefer to sponsor a single presenter, but will consider multiple presenters
collaborating to conduct a single presentation, so long as costs do not exceed $3000.

Requests should be received no later than six weeks prior to the conference. Council
sponsorship must be acknowledged on conference flyers and agendas,

PROCEDURES:

1. In addition, the Council will consider other factors including, but not limited to:
« The target audience for the event (e.g., national, multi-state or regionai,
statewide; self-advocates, parents, providers, direct support professionals, etc.}

+ |nvolvement of people with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and
family members in the planning of the event
 Responsiveness to the Council's goals and objectives in the US Administration

on Intellectual and Developmental Disabilities (AIDD) Five-Year State Plan of the
NCCDD

¢ Commitment to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)

a) accessibility of conference location, facilities, publications, materiais and
programs;

b) inclusion in the conference funding request that contains an objective
describing how conference planning will determine the accessibility of the
facility in which the conference/event will be conducted;

¢) participant satisfaction evaluations are encouraged and should include
questions with regard to facility accessibility for conferences/events
funded by the Council (as applicable)

63



Qutreach to and expected degree of participation of peaple with intellectual and
other developmental disabilities and/or their family members in a conference

Systems change, advocacy, and community capacity building implications for
persons with intellectual and other developmental disabilities and families

Collaboration with Council grants or inclusion of presentations from Council
grantees

Willingness of the applicant to agree, as a contingency for funding and at Council
discretion, to waive registration fees, dependent on conference size, for up to
five Council members / staff selected by the Council for attendance at the event
Conference potential to build or enhance collaboration or partnership with
national DD network, state Administration on DD network programs (i.e., P&A,
UCE), or other key stakeholders

Endorsements from agencies, organizations, and individuals

Conference funding request farm attached to and made part of this policy

pal DEN AN MR MAE MUW BES NES M ONM SRS UM OOW MBS MUS MBS AEE BB O



NC
£y

L

NCCDD CONFERENCE/SPEAKER FUNDING REQUEST
Mail to: NCCDD, 3125 Poplarwood Ct., Raleigh, NC 27604 or e-mail: joann.toomey@dhhs.nc.gov
NAME OF AGENCY MAKING REQUEST:
MAIN CONTACT:
NAME:
AGENCY ADDRESS:
EMAIL ADDRESS:
TELEPHONE:

CONFERENCE TITLE AND BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF EVENT OBJECTIVE:
(Attach Conference Brochure if available)

DATE(S) OF CONFERENCE: (Month/Day/Year)
CONFERENCE LOCATION: (Conference Center, City)
NAME AND TITLE OF SPEAKER(S) PROPOSED FOR NCCDD SPONSORSHIP:

TITLE OF SPEAKER’S PRESENTATION and TOPIC DESCRIPTION:
(Attach bio that includes speaker’s address, phone # and e-mail)

DATES OF TRAVEL FOR SPEAKER:

SPEAKER FEE: $

COST OF SPEAKER TRAVEL (Break out costs - receipts are required for airfare, ground

tr?nsgortation and hotel. Receipts are not required for meals or mileage and are paid at state
rates ).

TOTAL REQUESTED: %

NOTE: Upon NCCDD approval of request, Agency and speaker will be notified, NCCDD will make payment directly to
the speaker.

Page t of 2

65



NCCDD CONFERENCE/SPEAKER FUNDING REQUEST
(continued)

Does the facility where the event will be held meet Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA)
requirements for accessihility? X N

Describe the conference planning committee activities facused on ensuring event ADA
compliance:

Who is the target audience for this presentation/conference?

Coes the event planning commiittee include people with intellectual or other developmental
disabilities or a family member?
¥ N

Who are the members of the event planning committee?

Describe event activities having implications for systems change, advocacy, and community
capacity building:

Describe how the event will build or enhance collaboration or partnership with key
stakeholders, e.g., people with intellectual or other developmental disabilities, their
families, state and other governmental agencies, providers, and the NC ADD Network*:

List the names of other agencies, organizations, and individuals providing spensorship or
endorsement of this event:

Upon signature, applicant agrees to acknowledge NCCDD on conference flyers and agendas,
and waive up to 5 registration fees for NCCDD members or staff.

Submitted by: Date

"NCADD Wy

: WNorth Careling Afministration on Developmental Disahilities Network inciudes the Caroting Institute for Developmental Disabilifies
rer for Excellence in Develapmenial Disabilities); Disabifity Rights North Caraéing (NC Protection and Advacacy Organization), and the

=

it Carcling Council on Devetopmentad Disabilities (NCCDD ) These three agencies are reguired by the Developmental Disabilities Bill of Rights amd

esifance Act to collaborate to support and assist people with intellectual or other devefopmental disabilities and their families.

Page 2 of 2

pai 2N ME MW MEE NS BEG BOS NS AWM DU AN BoE SN BB DS MBS MBS am



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Council Operations DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
9/5/1997, 10/28/15

TOPIC: Conflict of Interest BOARD APPROVED DATE:

POLICY:

The purpose of this policy is to ensure that the dissemination of Council funds occurs in
a manner that protects the integrity of the Council, its members, its employees, and its
advisors. Consistent with the Developmental Disabilities Bill of Rights and Assistance
Act (DD Act), the policy prohibits members, employees, and advisors of the Council, in
the course of Council financial transactions, from: a) receiving personal financial gain
and b) exerting undue influence. To accomplish these ends, the policy provides a
detailed framework for analyzing situations with which the Council may be faced in the
course of disseminating funds for grants or coniracts.

Both real and apparent conflicts of interest sometime occur in the course of conducting
the Council’'s daily affairs. A “conflict,” for purposes of this policy, refers only to: a) the
personal, proprietary interests of covered individuals and their immediate families and
b) undue influence, exerted by these same individuals and their immediaie families over
financial transactions involving the Council. Conflict, in this context, does not refer to
philosophical or professional differences of opinion.

Members, employees, and advisors to the Council shall not engage in any conduct or
activity that might reasonably be interpreted by the general public as tending to
adversely affect the performance of their official duties.

No member, employee or advisor shall

* participate in the discussion, selection, award or administration of, or seek to
advise on or influence a decision or vote regarding, a grant or contract to which
the Council is party, where the covered individual knows or should have known
that he or she has a direct or indirect financial interest in the award.

« per Executive Order 34 on Ethics and Attendance Standards, solicit or accept
anything of value (e.g., money, service, gift, benefit, loan, travel, entertainment,
or promise) from anyone who is subject to the Council’s jurisdiction, or who is
likely to become interested in any grant or contract of the Council, where the
covered individual exercises any discretionary function, relative to his or her
official duties with the Council,

» participate in the selection process, or seek to advise on or influence a decision
or vote regarding, a grant or contract to an entity, to which the Council is party,
where the covered individual or his/her immediate family member has: a) a

67



substantial ownership interest; b) serves on the Board of Directors; or ¢) is a
member, or employee of such entity.

exert undue influence in any Council transaction resulting in the award of a grant
or contract.

receive personal financial gain from a Council contract or grant over which he or
she has direct influence.

divulge to an unauthorized person information identified as confidential, acquired
in the course of official Council duties, in advance of the time prescribed for its
authorized release to the public.

No member, employee, or advisor shall reprasent his or her personal opinion as
that of the Council.

Each member, empioyee, or advisor shall, at all times, disclose publicly all
conflicts of interest, including those which are uncertain or potential, and shall
specify any association with individuals or organizations which might benefit from
activities and decisions of the Council.

PROCEDURES:

5

Any Council member, advisor, cr employee that identifies a Conflict of Interest,
whether his/her own or another party’s conflict, shall immediately report it to the
Executive Director of the Council.

There will be a Conflict of Interest reminder at every Council meeting.

68l



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

| SECTION: Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:

' 4/22/02, 10/28/15
TOPIC: Disposition of Unsolicited BOARD APPROVED DATE:
Requests for funding

POLICY:

The Council utilizes a Request for Application (RFA) process in awarding contracts. The
RFA contains objectives derived from the State Plan. The Council, directly or through its
priority area committees, receives unsolicited proposals that cannot be funded either
through the current State Plan or the RFP process.

The NC Council on Developmental Disabilities can consider only requests for funding
that meet the following criteria:

« Requests that address {a} specific need(s) as identified through analyses of the
"Needs and Concerns" section(s) of the Council's current State Plan;

OR

* Requests that address {a} specific Three Year Objective(s) or {a} specific Plan Year
Objective(s) in the Council's current State Plan;

OR

¢ Requests that address (either from a Committee report or the Request for
Application) the documented intent of {a} specific Three Year Objective(s) or {a}
specific Plan Year Objective(s) in the Council's current State Plan.




NC Councii on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

|

SECTION: Council Operations DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
s 4/15/13, 12/8/15
TOPIC: Effective Communication BOARD APFROVED DATE:

POLICY:

“Effective Communication” means that whatever is writien or spoken must be as clear
and understandable to people with disabilities as it is for people who do not have
disabilities. This is important because some people have disabilities that affect how
they communicate. People who have disabilities that affect hearing, seeing, speaking,
reading, writing, or understanding may use different ways to communicate than people
who do not.

The effective communication requirement applies to ALL members of the public,
including job applicants, program participants, companions and people who simply
contact the Councii seeking information about programs, services, or activities. The
term “companion” means a family member, friend, or associate with whom the Councit
would typically communicate.

The Council will provide appropriate auxiliary aids and services when necessary to
ensure that individuals with disabilities have an equal opportunity to participate in, and
benefit from the Council's programs, services and acflivities. Auxiliary aids and services
provided by the Council will be free of any additional charge to the individual with a
disability in accordance with ADA.

Definitions:

What Are Auxiliary Aids and Services? Appropriate auxiliary aids and services
include a wide variety of equipment, materials and personal services that may be
necessary to ensure effective communication for people with disabilities. Generally, the
requirement to provide an auxiliary aid or service is triggered when a person with a
disability requests it.

What Are Examples of Auxiliary Aids and Services? Auxiliary Aids and Services for
people who have disabilities that affect hearing, seeing, speaking, reading, writing, or
understanding include, but are not limited to:

Qualified interpreters on-site or through video remote interpreting (VRI) services
Notetakers

Exchange of written notes

Assistive listening devices

Open and closed captioning inciuding real-time captioning

|
o



Qualified readers
Audio recordings
Brailled materials
Screen reader software
Magnification software
Large print materials

Accessible electronic and information technology (such as the Council’'s web site
and other electronic communication)

. & & & =

PROCEDURES:

1. For all events, requests for accommodations will be honored for all of the
Council’'s programs, services, and activities.

71



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manusl

'SECTION: Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
711111, 3118113, 10/28/15 |
TOPIC: Extension of External BOARD APPROVED DATE: !
Initiative |
POLICY:

It is the policy of the NCCDD to fund new, external initiatives for up to three years, at
which time an initiative will ciose out. Exceptions to this rule shall be governed by this
policy.

It is the Council's practice to close out external initiatives that reach the maximum
funding period which shall not exceed three years. If the Council determines that work
remains to be done in a particular area, its standard course of action after an initiative
reaches the maximum funding period should be to fund similar, additional or related
activities under a new Request for Application, or, as appropriate, through a new, non-
competitive (“sole source”) funding release,

On very rare occasions, there may be exceptions to the rule that the funding for
externa! inittatives shall end after the period of maximum funding period is reached.
Under very limited circumstances, the Council may elect to provide additional funds to
an external contractor to conduct activities beyond the and date of the final contract.

Factors to be considered include:
1. The proposed action plan must be consistent with the current State Plan.

2. The contractor is in good standing with the Council, including compliance with
reporting requirements.

3. The contractor has the capacity and qualifications to achieve the outcomes
specified by the Council membership.

4. The contractor's work was: &) impeded by the presence of unanticipated
systems barriers ihat directly prevented the contractor from achieving the
outcomes set forth in the approved action plan; and b) the award of additional
funds and time would afford the contractor the opportunity to achieve the
outcomes set out in the action plan had systems barriers not been presernit.

5. The contractor's work was impeded by environmental events beyond the
contractor's control, which events directly prevented the contractor from
achieving the outcomes set forth in the approved action pian; and the award of

b |
(o ]



additional funds and time would give the contractor the opportunity to achieve

the outcomes set out in the action plan had environmental events not taken
place.

. Additional funding will leverage capacity, the monetary value or systems change

potential of which would significantly exceed the Council’s investment of
additional funds.

. Consideration should be given to the availability of Council funds. Consideration

should also be given to the original award amount and scope of work set out
under the original fund release. There is a rebuttable presumption that the

award amount should not exceed the amount released to the contractor in year
one.

. At least 90 days before the end of the third year of funding, the contractor's

request includes an action plan and budget for the proposed extension. The
action plan and budget clearly indicate that the additional time and funds are for
the achievement of a specific objective or objective(s) that were: a) set out in the
initial fund release; or b} so closely related to the activities defined in the last
Council-approved action plan that consideration by the Council of a separate
funding release, competitively or under the Sole Source Policy for non-
competitive fund releases, is clearly not warranted.

. The contractor has the capacity and qualifications to achieve the outcomes

specified in the new action plan.

73



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
4/1/1989, 5/2/1999, 4/22/02,

TOPIC: Funding and Reimbursement | BOARD APPROVED DATE:
for Contractors |

POLICY:

It is the policy of the NCCDD that funds provided to contractors shall be managed
effectively.

The Council on Developmental Disabilities receives funds on a federal fiscal year
{October 1 to September 30). These funds (state grant award) may be encumbered
aver a two-year period from the effective date of the award, and may be encumbered to
a variety of recipients known as contractors. These encumbrances occur through the
execution of legal contracts.

Any contractor requesting a budget revision must make the request prior to the effective
date of the revisions. Although requests for advances are considered, they are rarely
approved.

A “negative grant award” is an award that reduces the amount of funds. The Council
shalt approve a negative contract only if there is just cause.

All remaining funds encumbered for any contract shall revert to the Council.

PROCEDURES:

Once the Council has approved funds to be encumbered to a specific vendor, a
contract shall be developed. Prompt payment of contract funds shall occur.

1. Not less than monthly, a Request for Reimbursement showing expenditures, both
federal and non-federal, will be submitted to the Council. While no moneys may
have been expended (in such case all entries will be zeros), these monthly reports
are mandatory. A report in arrears more than sixty (60) days, or two months of the
period for which the project is funded, may not be reimbursed. This may result in a
reduction of federal funds (negative grant award).

2. Not more than thirty (30} days after the scheduled ending date of the activity, a final
Request for Reimbursement showing expenditures covered under the contract will
be submitted to the Council. After thirty (30) days, the most recent Reguest for
Reimbursement received by the Council may be considered to be the final request.

=
P



. No Request for Reimbursement may be submitted for any encumbrance made after

the ending date shown on page one (1) of the Contract.

. A letter will be sent to each Priority Service Activity provider on the twenty-fifth (25)

day of the month alerting the provider of this policy, where such provider has not
submitted a monthly Request for Reimbursement.

. Requests for reimbursement for a time period longer than a quarter (requests for

reimbursement for expenditures dating back more than three (3) months) are not
likely to be approved.

. Requests for advances must be submitted by the fifteenth (15th) day of the month

for which the advance is being requested.

Requests for advances are permitted, but for time periods of no greater than one
month. Requests for reimbursement must be submitted by the fifteenth (15th) day of
the montg following the month or the quarter for which the reimbursement is being
requested.

. Requests for budget revisions must be made prior to the effective date of the

revisions.

. A negative grant award can occur when either the Council or the recipient of the

contract with cause, requests that a contract be voided.

75



NC Council on Developmental Disabtlities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Council Operations DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
12/28/1998, 4/22/02, 12/8/15

TOPIC: : Internal Fiscal Controls and | BOARD APPROVED DATE:
Funding_

POLICY:

No federal developmental disability money will be promised or spent by the NC Council
on Developmental Disabilities or its staff without clearing anticipated and/or projected
spending with the full Council. .

The fiscal year shall be the federal fiscal year (FFY), beginning October 1 and ending
September 30" of the next calendar year.

The Council has the autharity to develop and oversee its budget, excluding specific
personnel line items. The Council's administrative budget, which may not exceed 30%
of the total federal grant award among other line items, consists of travel, printing,
educational expense, supplies, eic. While money may be moved from one line item to
ancther, the percentage above cannot be exceeded. Any adjustment and/or
amendment to the Council's budget must be approved by the State’s Administering
agency, the Depariment of Health and Human Services.

Once the budget has been approved by the Council, the Executive Director has final
approval of all expenditures. The approval of all expenditures, however, is always
contingent on the availability of funds.

The Council, as the recipient of federal dollars, awards money to support priority service
activities.

PROCEDURES:

1. Activities funded by the Council are funded to contractors. For fiscal purposes,
in-house activities (although monitored by staff) are also contracted activities
since funds needed to support these in-house activities are reported to the
federal government as pari of the Council's 70% programmatic money,

2. All contractors’ requests for reimbursement or for advances are on a monthly
basis, and may not be for longer periods of time. In-house invoices, bills,
payment requests, etc. should be processed monthly, Requests for advances
cannot be made to other State agencies without written justification by the
agency requesting the advance.

~f
[=1]



3.

"Carry-over” from one funding period to the next is not allowed. The contractor
loses money not used during the funding period. Money that is encumbered on
the last day of the funding period is reimbursable, as long as all expenses are
reported on the contractor’s final report. For in-house projects, "final report”
expenditures have the same time frame as all other contracts.

Invoices and receipts must accompany items shown as "equipment” on
confractor's budgets when reimbursement for such items is requested. It is the
responsibility of Council fiscal staff to verify that required invoices have been
submitted. Program staff can assist by determining that invoices have been
submitted. In doing so, delays in reimbursement may be avoided.

For further detail refer to NCCDD Fiscal Procedure Manual.

77



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION:; Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
5/5/1999, 8/4/1998, 5/22/02, 12/8/15

|
TOPIC: Matching and Non-Matching | BOARD APPROVED DATE:
Funds |

POLICY:

The Purpose of this policy is to (1) encourage priority service activities o become self-
supporting after Council funding ceases, and (2) maintain level total program costs over
a three year funding period. On occasion, contractors may be able to maintain funding
percentages—for example, 75%-25%, 60%-40%, 50%-50%, etc.—while requesting the
same level of federal dollars. In other words, some cantractors may have the capacity
to increase, each year, non-federal match, and thereby increase total program cost.
The chart below shows the intent of the Council for an activity in @ non-poverty county.

DD FUNDS NON-FED MATCH TOTAL PROGRAM COST
Year 1 $75,000 75% $25,000 25% $100,000
Year2 $60,000 60% $40,000 40% $100,000

($75,000 60%) ($50,000 40%) ($125,000)
Year 3 $50,000 50% $50,000 50% $100,000

($75,000 50%) (375,000 50%) ($150,000)

The same exception could be illustrated for an activity in a poverty county. The resuit of
the policy exception is that Total Program Cost increases from $100,000 in the first year
to $150,000 in the third year, although correct percentages are maintained.

No initiative employer or volunteer, without providing reasonable justification in writing,
may utilize a percentage of his/her time for match or fo procure federal funds, which
percentage of time is incompatibte with commitmenis to other endeavors, paid or
volunteer, which occur during the time period that person is obligated to the Council
contract. The Council reserves the right to request full disclosure of records.
Reimbursement may be suspended based on this disclosure.

If, at the initiation of the Council, the funding amount for an initiative is increased to an
amount above that advertised in the Request for Application (RFA), the Council may
elect to waive its policy regarding matching ratios. Such waiver shall obligate the
grantee to provide no more in matching funds, in any year, than the amount derived
from the matching funds requirement policy, as applied to the original grant award
advertised in the RFA.

by



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Council Members DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
4/28/03, 41112, 12/8/15

TOPIC: Member Training and Travel BOARD APPROVED DATE:

POLICY:

The Council seeks to provide its members with opportunities for development, outside
its quarterly meetings, that build the organization’s capacity, individually and
collectively. This may include the opportunity to attend local, state and national
conferences, training, making site visits to see contractors at work as well as other
appropriate leadership events.

Council support for member travel other than council meetings may be in full or in part,
and will be determined on a case-by-case basis. Agency representatives are not
eligible for these funds.

The Executive Director or designee shall ensure that members are aware of upcoming
events as appropriate. Notification of events shall not constitute an assurance that
funds will be obligated fro that event.

PROCEDURES:

1} Members should notify staff of their interest in attending an event at least three
weeks prior to the event.

2) The Chair and one Vice-Chair may approve support of Council member
attendance at an event based on staff recommendation. Recommendations and
approval will be based on consideration of the following:

a) availability of funds

b) individual's expressed interests

¢) relevance of event to Council priorities, based on the State Plan

d) relevance of activity to member’s leadership role within the Council, e.g.,
Executive or Committee Chair responsibilities

e) overall equity of allocation of available funds among members

f) member’s level of participation in Council meetings

g) other factors consistent with the intent of this policy

3) lis the members responsibility to mail original, signed DHHS travel
reimbursement form and original receipts to NCCDD within 7 days upon
returning from event. Members must be prepared to share what they learned at
the event to document the experience/knowledge gained.

79



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
FPolicy and Procedure Manual

['SECTION: Council Operations DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:

3/28/16
{mmc; NCCDD State Plan BOARD APPROVED DATE:
I._Bequirements o i i

POLICY:
The NCCDD shall at a minimum:
Advise the Secretary of the Department of Human Resources, the Governor, and the

State Legislature regarding the development and implementation of the NCCDD’s Five-
Year State Plan as required by the DD Act through:

a. Systemic change, capacity building, and advocacy activities.
b. Examination of areas of emphasis.
C. State Plan development, including. demonstration of new approaches;

outreach; training; supporting communities; interagency collaboration and
coardination; coordination with related councils, committees, and programs;
barrier elimination, systems design, and citizen participation; public education
and coalition development; informing policymakers; prevention; and other
activities consistent with the DD Act. :

d. State Plan monitoring.

e. Review of designated state agency.

i Reports to the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human
Services.

g. Preparation, approval, and implementation of a budget, including:

conducting hearings and forums as the NCCDD determines to be necessary;
reimbursing NCCDD members for reasonable and necessary expenses for
attending NCCDD meetings and performing NCCDD duties (including child care
and personal assistance, and paying a stipend to a member if such member is
not employed or must forfeit wages, as described in the DD Act); hiring and
maintaining sufficient numbers and types of staff as the NCCDD determines to
be necessary; and directing the expenditure of funds for grants contracts,
interagency agreements, and cther activities authorized under the State Plan.
h. Recruitment, hiring, supervision and evaluation of a Director.

i Staff assignments.

Advise the Secretary of the Department of Human Resources regarding other matters
relating to developmental disabilities.

o
[}



NC Council on Developmental Disabilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Council Members DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:
3/25/02, 4/22/02, 7/15/13, 10/5/15

TOPIC: Reimbursement of Expenses: | BOARD APPROVED DATE:
Childcare, Respite, and Personal
Assistance

POLICY:

The North Carolina Council on Developmental Disabilities values the input and
participation of all Council Members, particularly members who have developmental
disabilities. Some Council members may require respite, childcare, or personal
assistance to participate fully in Council meetings and other Council events.

For all three forms of reimbursement, the Council is to be payer of last resort, that is,

there will be no reimbursement for care that would have been provided even if there
were no meeling.

In cases where there is hardship, an intermediary will be contacted for assistance.

Child Care for up to three children may be reimbursed, not to exceed $500 per event,
and is capped for a 24-hour period at $150.00 Reimbursement is available for up to
three children per family. Parent or legal guardian of children is not eligible to receive
reimbursement for childcare. The Council's Executive Commitiee may deviate from this
policy to accommodate exienuating circumstances for individual Council members.

Respite Services shall be reimbursed during the entire time a member is away from
home to attend a Council meeting or Council event and the need for services is outside
the family member’s routine respite services (e.g., different time of day, location or
direct support professional A member is not eligible to receive reimbursement when
care is provided by another adult who is the parent or legal guardian of the member's
child, when that child is under the age of 21.

Personal Assistance may be reimbursed as long as it is provided is by non-relatives or
relatives, except “legally responsible relatives” {i.e., spouses and parents of minor
children), if payment for such assistance is not available from any other source for
those services, and if such terms do not represent a conflict of interest, as detailed in
the Council's Conflict of Interest policy. The Council is to be payer of last resort, that is,

there will be no reimbursement for assistance that would have been provided if there
were no meeting.

g1



PROCEDURES:

Child Care:

1.

2.

3

Respite

For care for one child, pay actual costs of care, not to exceed the following
rates:

« Forin-home, out-of-home, and center-based respite care: Pay the current
Medicaid reimbursement rate.

s For Specialized Care by a certified nursing associate or nurse: Pay the
current Medicaid reimbursement rate.

« For Baby-Sitter Care: Pay the minimum wage; pay an additional 10% for
each additional child.

Reimbursement for childcare expenses will require receipt for payment of care to
provider, or invoice from provider.
The total cost of respite is capped at $500 per event.

1. The NCCDD will reimburse its members, as follows, paying actual costs of

service, not to exceed the following rates:

For in-home, out-of-home, and center-based respite services: pay the
current Medicaid reimbursement rate.

For Specialized Care by a certified nursing associate or nurse: pay the
current Medicaid reimbursement rate.

For other respite services: pay the minimum wage.

2. Reimbursement for respite expenses will require an original, signed receipt for

payment of services to provider, or an invoice from provider.

Personal Assistance

1. The Council will reimburse Council members for personal assistance costs

incurred while she/he is conducting official business for the Council. This
includes assistance received during travel time, and when business requires
spending the night. Personal assistant expenses for meals, lodging and
mileage will be reimbursed to Council members in accordance with current
State of NC Travel Policies.

. The Council will reimburse members for payment for personal assistance at a

rate not to exceed the current Medicaid reimbursement rate for up to eight
hours of assistance per 24-hour period for the type of assistance required by
the Council member.

. All personal assistance costs and expenses must be listed on the Council

member's Travel Reimbursement Request and documented by a dated
receipt with original signature from the personal assistant to the Council
member.

oo
N



NC Council on Developmental Diszbilities
Policy and Procedure Manual

SECTION: Contracts DATE ISSUED/UPDATED:

8/1/1999, 3/24/08, 12/8/15
TOPIC: Sole Source Funding BOARD APPROVED DATE:
POLICY:

Occasionally, the nature of a Council objective may require the service of a specialized
vendor, and no RFA is issued. Such objectives may include Council-initiated activities,
conferences (dealt with under a separate policy), non-conference public events, and
Council funds used as match for non-federal grant funds, among other activities. The

purpose of this policy is to assist the Council in determining when such non-competitive
awards should be made.

The issue of sole source funding arises when a need exists for services that are
available from only one agency or organization, college or university, or unit of
government. Sole source funding is an exception to the rule, but there are
circumstances that may make it necessary or advisable.

One or more of the following factors should be considered in determining whether to
pursue sole source funding:

Key Factors

¢« NCCDD staff have screened request to determine status and referred it to the
appropriate commitiee.

+ Committee has received information in advance.

+ Primary population targeted meets federal Developmental Disability definition

e Activity is responsive to goals and objectives in the State Plan or Council elects to
modify Plan.

« Activity differs significantly from those funded under request for application (RFA).

» Staff capacity is adequate to provide oversight and management of sole source
activity.

e Only one (1) bona fide source of the service exists.

¢ Organization or agency is uniquely familiar with the service or activity to be
evaluated.

s Need is such that a particular individual, agency or organizations skills, abilities, and
experience make the entity uniquely qualified to fulfill the need.

« RFA was issued, but no satisfactory applications were received.

« Emergency or immediate action is necessary to achieve desired outcome in desired
timeframe.

e Service(s) are necessary to complete a previously funded, on-going activity.

83



« Where Council elects to provide funds contingent on applicant/contractor’s receipt of
other non-federal funds.

« Enhances ADD Network collaboration.

« Other factors specific to circumstances.

Funding decisions will be made on a case-by-case basis, with strong preference given
fo committee review and full Council approval.

PROCEDURES:
1. Requests for sole source funding will be brought to the appropriate committee of

the Council for review of this policy and key factors, and if appropriate, refer to
the full Council for approval.

o0
F=N



A e S BN EE Ty B E BN R BN D Er R N A 'y i
[t T P

5 Year State Plan

FFY 2017-2021

Oct. 1, 2016 thru Sept. 30, 2021

Listen. Gather. Act.



86

North Carolina

NC



NCCDD Development Schedule
2016 — 2021 Five-Year State Plan

Updated 04/14/2016
Continued

November 18 - 20, 2015
«  NCCDD Staff/E.C. present TENTATIVE DRAFT Goals and Objectives

¢« Seek Full Council approval for PUBLIC RELEASE of DRAFT Goals and Objectives with Executive Summary of
Comprehensive Review and Analysis

«  Minimum 45 days per DD Act

December 1, 2015 —january 14, 2016 (Revised 12/01/2015)

« DRAFTNCCDD 2017 — 2021 State Plan GOALS and OBJECTIVES released for public comment {(NOTELncorporate-ARRR
Consumer/StakeholdarSurvey)

January 21, 2016 (Added 1/12/2016)
¢ 5-Year State Plan Development Ad Hoc Committee Discusses Public Comments

February 2016 Council Meeting
«  Quarterly Council meeting. NCCDD Reviews and discusses public comment.

¢« NOTE: Significant input resulting in substantive REVISION requires second 45 day release for public comment (e.g.,
February 25, 2016 — April 15, 2016)

May 2016 Council Meeting
»  NCCDD receives update by staff on progress of putting plan information in DD Suite

July 1-25, 2016
e Share plan with DSA. DSA Signs Assurances.

August 2016 Council Meeting

+ Full plan available and distributed to NCCDD; comprehensive DD Suite print out available. Council approval to submit
plan to AIDD sought

August 15, 2016
e Deadline for submission to AIDD of NCCDD 2016 — 2021 Five Year State Plan

October 1, 2016
¢ TFjve Year Plan start date



NCCDD Development Schedule
2016 — 2021 Five-Year State Plan
Updated 04/14/2016
January 23, 2015

« Executive Committee {E.C.) reviews Five-Year State Plan development schedule and discusses process

¢ EC provides initial authority to pursue state plan goal 5.1: Advance Development of Five Year Plan

«  Review Sole Source Policy for Carolina Institute on Developmental Disabilities (CIDD} development support with

Comprehensive Review and Analysis

February 12 — 13, 2015
¢ 2016 -2021STATE PLAN DEVELOPMENT KICK OFF!
« Staff present Five-Year State Plan Development process and schedule, and
¢« Highlight member involvement and other development activities {e.g., survey distribution, input forum ambassadors,
direct input opportunities)

March 1, 2015 (Rev. from 1-23-15)
« CIDD potentiafly starts to analyze data/results of information from various sources including surveys, listening
sessions, and key state agency/organization staff interviews

May 14 — 15, 2015 (Rev. 6/15/2015)
s NCCDD Staff asdGbbdunitiative Coordinator present “up to date” results and an update on general process activities

+  COUNCIL MEMBER STATE PLAN DEVELOPMENT SESSION 1 of 2. Using preliminary state, nationaland-NE
cibizen/stakeholderdata, NCCDD members convey their interests for goal/objective areas for concentration.
{Remember, public input period lasts through July 31)

June 1~ }uly 31, 2015 (Rev. 6/30/2015)
s Announcement Release June 12, 2015 for Survey and Public Listening Sessions {1% Listening Session June 23).
4+ NCCDD Member Session 1 results shared with E.C. and 5YSPD AHC (June 20}
e Key state agency/organization staff interviews

July 13, 2015
s« CIDD provides to NCCDD Staff preliminary results of surveys, listening sessions, Member Session 1 results, and key
state agency/organization staff interviews
¢ luly 13 — 17, NCCDD Staff develop prefiminary outcome targets recommendations using CIDD data

July 20, 2015
«  Executive Committee and 5YSPD AHC reviews/gives feedback on preliminary outcome targets recommendations

July 31, 2015
« Al development input opportunities CLOSE

August 06 — 07, 2015
¢ Council staff with support of CIDD present results of document review and public/NCCDD member/interview data
¢ Staff present prefiminary recommendations of outcome targets
¢ COUNCIL MEMBER STATE PLAN DEVELOPMENT SESSION 2 of 2: Goal and Objective AREAS DEVELOPMENT. Discuss

preliminary outcome target areas guided by NCCDD Framework, Public/Stakeholder Input, and key document results.

August 10 - October 1, 2015 (Updated 9/18/15)
¢« Executive Committee, 5YSPD AHC, Staff, CIDD Develop TENTATIVE Goal and Objectives
{ACTUAL meeting date: September 20 & 21, 2015)

October 20, 2015 {Rev. from 9/18/2015)
¢ Last Executive Committee and 5YSPD AHC meetings preceding November Annual Meeting. (Final opportunity for fine
tuning TENTATIVE DRAFT Goal and Objectives}

=4
[}



ITACC — Information and Technical Assistance Center for Councils on Developmental Disabilities

Timeline for 2017-2021 State plan:
What is Due and When?

State Plan Amendment - A major change of a 5-year goal that alters the intent of the

original goal (formerly referred to as “substantive change”).

State Plan Update - Minor grammatical changes to 5-year goals and other components of
the plan such as objectives, activities, expected outcomes, evaluation, etc. (formerly
referred to as “non-substantive change”).

What is due?

When is it due?

Notes

State Plan Amendments for
FFY 2016

August 15, 2015

See description above

State Plan Updates for FFY
2016

January 1, 2016

See description above

Program Performance
Report for FFY 2015

January 1, 2016

A reporting of activities and
results for October 1, 2014
through September 30,
2015

2017-2021 5-Year State
Plan

August 15, 2016

FFY 2017 Annual Work Plan

August 15, 2016

FFY 2018 Annual Work Plan

August 15, 2016

Program Performance
Report for FFY 2016

January 1, 2017

A reporting of activities and
results for October 1, 2015
through September 30,
2016

State plan Updates for FFY
2017

January 1, 2017

State plan amendments for
FFY 2018

August 15, 2017

See description above

Program Performance
Report for FFY 2017

January 1, 2018

A reporting of activities and
results for October 1, 2016
through September 30,
2017.

State plan updates for FFY
2018

January 1, 2018

See description above

FFY 2019 Annual Work plan

January 1, 2018

FFY 2020 Annual Work plan

January 1, 2018

State plan amendments for
FFY 2019

August 15, 2018

See description above

Program Performance
Report for FFY 2018

January 1, 2019

A reporting of activities and
results for October 1, 2017
through September 30,
2018.

State plan updates for FFY
2019

January 1, 2019

See description above

FFY 2021 Annual Wark plan

January 1, 2019

89



ITACC — Information and Technical Assistance Center for Councils on Developmental Disabilities

State plan amendments for | August 15, 2019

FFY 2020

See description above

Program Performance January 1, 2020
Report for FFY 2019

A reporting of activities and
results for October 1, 2018
through September 30,
2019,

State plan updates for FFY January 1, 2020

See description above

Report for FFY 2020

2020

State plan amendments for | August 15, 2020 See description above

FFY 2021

Program Performance January 1, 2021 A reporting of activities and

results for October 1, 2019
through September 30,
2020,

2021

State plan updates for FFY January 1, 2021

See description above

Program Performance January 1, 2022
Report for FFY 2021

Final PPR that includes a
reporting of activities and
results for Octobher 1, 2020
through September 30,
2021 and 5 year overview

Note: This timeline does not include submission of the FY 2022-2026 5 year state plan
submission. Information included in this document is subject to change.

Federal Fiscal Year Dates

FFY 2016 | October 1, 2015 through September 30, 2016 |
FFY 2017 October 1, 2016 through September 30, 2017
FFY 2018 Qctober 1, 2017 through September 30, 2018
FFY 2019 Qctober 1, 2018 through September 30, 2019
FFY 2020 Octeober 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020
| FFY 2021 October 1, 2020 through September 30, 2021

D
o



y ;{d‘:{‘;__:ﬁgﬂu % NCCDD

J'_! .“ t Morth Carclina Council on
Developmentai Disabiiities

NCCDD FFY 2017 - 2021 Five-Year State Plan
To Advance the DD Act Expectations of Self-Determination, Independence, Productivity,
Integration and Inclusion in Community Life for Individuals with Intellectual and other
Developmental Disabilities (I/DD) and their Families

GOAL 1: By 2021, INCREASE FINANCIAL SECURITY THROUGH ASSET
DEVELOPMENT FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH INTELLECTUAL AND OTHER
DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (I/DD)

Increase financial asset development for individuals with /DD so that they and their

families have greater opportunities for choice, self-determination, independence and
productivity.

OBJECTIVE A: Increase financial asset development and security for
individuals with I/DD by increasing their knowledge, developing financial
plans, and implementing the plan’s goails

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will have a financial plan, leading to
greater security.

OBJECTIVE B: Increase Integrated Competitive Employment and Careers

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will have integrated, competitive
employment and careers through collaboration which will include education,

workforce development, employment supports, employer engagement and barrier
reduction.

OBJECTIVE C: Increase Educational Expectations for Employment and
Careers

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will have educational expectations and
education regarding employment and career goals, as will their families, and other
stakeholders through increased knowledge and meaningful collaborations.

1of3|{Page

91



0SSy NCCDD

L:JJI [ North Carolina Councit on
Cevelopmental Disabilities

GOAL 2: By 2021, INCREASE COMMUNITY LIVING FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH
INTELLECTUAL AND OTHER DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (I/DD)
Throughout their lifespan, more individuals with I/DD will be fully included, respected,
valued and supported in their communities.

OBJECTIVE A: Increase Community Housing and Transportation

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will choose where and with whom to live
in his/her community and will have transportation options to support community
living and employment.

OBJECTIVE B: Increase Health Access and Wellness Opportunities

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will have access to, and continuity of
healthcare and wellness opportunltles through individual and family education and
provider capacity building.

OBJECTIVE C: Increase Healthy Community Relationships

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD will have healthy relationships and
positive community connections that will support personal choice and decision
making.

2of3|Page

[¥a)
N



2Ty NCC DD

% -1 North Carolina Councii on
Developmental Disabilities

GOAL 3: By 2021 INCREASE ADVOCACY FOR INDIVIDUALS WITH INTELLECTUAL
AND OTHER DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES (I/DD)

More individuals with I/DD will lead and sustain self-directed lives through self-advocacy,
family advocacy and stakeholder leadership.

OBJECTIVE A: As mandated by the DD Act, increase support to statewide

self-advocacy organization(s) through leadership development and coalition
participation by:

(I} establishing or strengthening a program for the direct funding of a state self-
advocacy organization led by individuals with 1/DD,

(11} supporting opportunities for individuals with I/DD who are considered leaders {o
provide leadership training to individuals with 1/DD who may become |leaders and,

(lll} participation in cross-disability and culturally diverse leadership coalitions.

Measurement: More individuals with /DD will knowledgeably advocate and take
part in decisions that affect their lives, the lives of others and/or systems.

OBJECTIVE B: Increase individual, family, public and system knowledge, and
engagement to provide system advocacy for the financial security and
community living opportunities of individuals with /DD

Measurement: More individuals with I/DD and their families knowledgeably

advocate and take part in decisions that affect their lives, the lives of others and/or
systems.

OBJECTIVE C: Increase Professional Development to Improve Expectations
and Supports for Individuals with I/DD

Measurement. More /DD professicnals, other professionals and community
leaders will receive leadership development to support collective impact to advance
the financial security and community living opportunities of individuals with I/OD.

30f3|Page

93



aad/t Yum s|enpiaipul 10y AJEJOAPE 2SEIIDU| .

Juia| AJunwwod 3seasdu| . MO NOA Op 1By
juawdo|aAap 33sse Y3nouyy AJ1INI3S [BIJUBULY DSBAIIU| uoneonp3
1SOAIIS] U€ S|ED :
qO pue sjeod JddilIN 13 A2€20APY

suejuljoIe) YIHON 000007 AjPiewixosddy
salyjigesiq {eluawdo|aAaq 13410 pue 1enyaa(|a1ul g/

é31gejlene s11eym
suondp
uolsnjpuj
Aylunwwon

uoisnpuj .
UuoleUIWIdDQ-RS -
uone4daiy] .
Ayaonpouq

. $ PADJE NOA UED JeYpp

aJjuapuadapu| . S}98SY
:0} 3uipea [elpueuld
ad/I yum sjenpiaipuj 104
3210y JO SJuUdW|F Ad) 910z Atenigay
s ymine eujose wwon ol

q uHUZ S AR



5 Year State Plan

Year 5: Oct. 1, 2015 thru Sept. 30, 2016

Listen. Gather. Act.

95



96

Norih Carolina



NCCDD (5] Five - Year State Plan |dentificalions of

1of2
Council Meeting Activilies
May 12 13, 2016
State Plan
Committee or Venue ~iD ~ Activity Description
| MEMBER DEVELOPMENT ;
[ - SESSION
5.5 Member QOrientation and Refresher
Continuation Funding Initiative Update: O'Neill
_ 5.3 Communications: NCCOD Communications Initiative
E ' In-House Initiatives HE
Continuation Funding Initiative Update: Administrative
Budget
Continuation Funding Initiative Update: Program/Quality
5.1 Management Budget
5.4 Continuation Funding Initiative Update: Rossi Fund Budget
I : ; . :
s Fiscal Report AR R 2 T AR PERS. TS  E Doy
Fiscal Report [Replaces report previously defivered in base
5.1 comymifiees}
Continugtion Funding Initiative Update: National Disability
29 Institute: Upward to Financial Stability
Continuation Funding Initiative Update: Dept. of Public
2.10 Safety: Emergency Preparedness
Reqguest for Cost Extension - Easter Seals: Medical & Health
2.5 Homes
FFY 2017  Permission to Draft; Supported Living Request for
Goal 2 Application (RFA)
Continuation Funding Initiative Update: First in Families NC:
4.4 Sibling Support Initiative _
! ADVOCACY DEVELOPMENT ', "o i # . il il o &iine i
Contlnuation Funding Initiative Update: First in Famihes NC:
4.4 Sibling Support Initiative
_ 33 FFY 2017 Leadershlp Development ObJectives
Imitiative Update: Rethinking Guardianship: Building A Case
2.8 For Less Restrictive Alternatives
210 Emergency Preparedness
Intellectual and Other Developmental Disabilities:
2.5 Coordination, Collaboration and Community
2.3 Adult Care homes
2.7 Initiative Update: Stakeholder Engagement Group
FFY 2017
_ Goal 2 Discussion: Supported Living Request for Application Draft
| FINANCIAL ASSET : :
| - DEVELOPMENT - it Wb i
15 Learning and Earning After High School
29 Upward to Financial Stability
1.7 Initiative Update: Project SEARCH
SACOUNCILCcuncil Mesting Elernen.ls\zm & Council Mestings\May 2016\51ate Plan RalatedWay 2016 Associations. xis

97



NCCDD {5) Five - Year Siate Plan ldentffications of
Council Meeling Activities
May 12 13, 2016

PUBLIC POLICY UPDATE
52 Public Policy Update and Discussion

NCCDD Policies Review
FULL COUNCIL MEETING P T _ e ;
5.5 2015 NCCDD Ad Hoc Committee Updates:
Governance
tembership and Development
Communications
51/5.5  Five-Year Siate Plan Development

New Business '

5.4 Rossi Fund Continuation Funding

5.3 O'Neill Public Relations/NCCDD Communications Initiative
Administrative Budget

51 Program Budget/Quality Management

K

SACOUNCILCouncil Mesling Elemeantsi2016 Council MaelingsiMay 2016\Stale Plan RelatedWMay 2015 Associalions xis

2of2

[Le)
00



o
o

sw 9[0Z/€1/1 paepdny

kst .

"28uRYD WSAS/A0BI0ADE (papApMD Jou) $S200nS J0 SL2PIHOYS]
10} sa18a)e1)S pajosas Jadie} pur sFuipuy) arednwolg (4 oY1 U0 SUIPUDIS JUONDINPTT AADPUCIIS-1SO]
cloz/1€/21 Ag (¥ “$110]J8 SBuBYD SWSISAS/AOBIOAPE
€107/1¢€/21 JO SSOUDATIO0IID 213 SOUBYUD 0] SOUBISISSE [BO1UYDD) aplaold (¢ ‘w9184 3321100 AUnuIuod)
z10z/10/L0 (€ ‘(s)s10B3U0D O}UI 19jus pur Fuipuny Jo (spustdoar oeg (Z 2yt wr sapunioddo uoneonpd ArRpU0IIS oN
CLOT/1E/C1 "/ Y siuapnys 1oy suondo (3§d) uoneonpy Arepuosag -1s0d a10w sAY [{la QC/] Wis S[Eaplalputf 2
-Z10Z/10/L0 (2 -1504 0} S1ouRq Ao10d JO JuDWISSIsse ) ui jsisse 0} dnosd 0s sa0In0sa/3utpuny apiaoid [fim [OUn0)| I
C10Z/1£/21 I3PJOYAIRIS 2UIAUOD PUB AJIHUSP] “UOHEINDS AIRPUODas-jsodedal[o .
-z1o0z/10/L0 {1 Aunwiros o uonisuer Joy wonediddy 10j 1sonbay dofeadg (i 1 Y
(POPADMD 10U} UOHDINPST ADPUCIIS-1SOJ|
‘suonpdo g4 03 s1a1uIeq Aorjod Jo yuawussosse o} ul Isisse 0y dnoid
IopIoYyaels SoURY|Y (FSd) uoneonpy AIepuodas 150d SaIIIqesI(] uoneINPH
[ejuswdo]aas(] uo aymisu] eurjolrey) ur aedoned [pia [ouno)) (€ Axepuoses-jsod u1 901040 10§ sspiunuoddo W
Z102/0€/90 A9 (€ ‘syueid opeodau pue (s)aojueid 10908 (T 20wl oARY [Ils (/] YN S[enpialpul jeyyl o
21020890 4a (T (/] Yitm sjuapngs 1oy suondo 08 s30anosaiBurpuny spraoid [f[im (wunodf ¥
z1oz/1s/s0 g (1 (3Sq) uonesnpa Arepuooas-1sod 0) sistueq Ao110d JO JUISSISSE A1) =
ur )s1sse 03 dnoid 1oproyayess Joj uonediddy Joy 1senbay dopasyg (1 Rl
A T " . : soAnNIqO

*SUODISUE.I} 3JI] jewt 0) padu A3y s)roddns

PUB SIDIAIIS Y} 0] SSII0B AIOW SH[TWEY ALY} pue qU/f Ynm ajdoad 3a1Z [JIm [1PUNO)) 33 Jo s)10)Jd aZueyd swaysAs ‘Fuipping Hpeded ‘Ar8r0ApY

NOILLISNVIL 1IVOD

SOUI[SWII] PUR SONIAIDY ‘$aAI1I03[QO) ‘S[ROD)
Ue[d 91el§ 1B A 941 910C - 1107 (TDIN
LTJOI



-

S 910Z/€1/1 parepdn

(ON fo sa1p1un, ui
1841.4) 23y f0 Sunwory soynuv.y Suljioddng)
aAd/l .,
i [eNPIATPUL UL IO S[EOT QJY Y} dARIPE I
0} $92In0sa1 S A[1we) 2yl a3eroaa] 0y Aoedey [
Ajiwey poddns jey sardsjens soueapel
‘dq/1 Y [enpialpul ue Jo 0} saoanosar/gurpung apiacid jiim [1ouno)) m
910Z/0£/60 s[eod aJi oy} 9AIIYIE 0} SROMOSAI § A[IUre) sy} adeIaa9] 0} Ajoedeo W
-11oz/10/10 (1 Apuey poddns yeys seonoead pue somijod sjowoad pue A nuspy (| T [N
‘saanjenIul JuowAcjdws pajeIsa)ul pue J10m 0) UCHISUERY)
Jo ssouareme o1jqnd 10} ssomnosair/Fuipuny opwoid [T jounc) (L
‘o3em 2annadwoo e je JuawAojdurs pejesdajur ut (¢J/] yna ofdoad
€10Z/0€/60 10y uonednred [jny jo woddns ul epuale Jeoos pue saondeid/Aorjod
- 110Z/1i0/01 (L 213018438 213 Jo uonEIUsUIR|dUIl 3] JO SSAUIANOSLJO SSassY (9
£10C/0€/60 ‘oFem oannedwos
“110Z/10/01 (9 ® 18 Juowkojdura payeidaur ut (3,1 Pim sjdoad 10 uonedronted [0y (uosnpouy Apruniauo)) 4of apnsuy)
£102/0€/60 Jo poddns ur epuade [ewos pue saonodeld/Aorjod si8aens juswspdur (¢ ANDIIU] L2110 1541, Jdudojdury
- 110Z/10/01 (S ‘oFem oannoadwiod e je JuowAojdws pajerdayul Ul (/1 wonpdioning jin.y 40f aouvippy ON|
€10Z/0£/60 Y o1doad 1oy uonedronred {ny yo poddas ur epuafe [ewos pue
- 110Z/10/01 (& saonoexds/Aorjod o13eiens ‘S1apioydeIs Yim diysiaupted ul ‘dojassq (v "aa/1
£102/0£/60 UOTIR[SIF] ym 21doad 10} yoswLopdw: 2annaduwos W_
- 110z/10/01 (€ 1811,] JuswAo[durg Funmnoss Jo spjeusq JNoqe ‘SIspjoyade’s Jo saisnpour ‘sanumoddo snwouoos) &
£102/0€/60 im uoneloqe]joo ut ‘oljqad jerousd pue sioxewiorod ojeonpy (g 0} AJNURLIOD Y] Ul $S3028 ISEIIIU] w...
- 1102/10/01 (T uumg dv [BUOTIEN 0} $300nosal/3urpunj apiaoid [[Im [10UIO)) W
£10Z/0€/60 oy spuspe tonedofep (d4VON) uonedionted [[nf 10} 2ouel]y DN (T X
- 110Z/10/01 (1 -Korjod asui quswkordury,, sidope QADON (I £y ~

SQUI[QUIL ], PUR SAMNANIY ‘S3A13[Q0) ‘STe0D)
UB[d 9JBiS JBo A 9AL] 910C - 1107 AUDON
L1JoT



sul 91(0Z/€1/1 payepdn

i01

(S2010435 S21]IQDSI(T JOIURUAO]2AB(]]

JO 540102417 2101 fO HOPIIOSSY

IOUONDA] UOISHIOUT LI 0)) 40 21rInsuy)

‘saoe[dy10Mm AJIUNTIWIOD y10mgap dugsaapoa] jusmdordiug 23058

‘parexdaqur ur sanIIqesip [Im adoad jo yuawlojdwe sannadwon
aouBApER 1Y SYS/IA/HING ssoe saoiorld pue saonjod juswsdury (g ‘SIaquiawt s) 0} JuswAopdwa punole s310110d] -
91/0€/6 -aduryo 10§ suondo [enusjod pue pue saonoeid uo souepmg Suipiacld pue 8
~Z171/01 (€ saonoeld pue satorjod juswiAo[dwe ozAeue 0} SYS/AQ/HNA 1SSV (T duneonps ‘Buueys 0] sarpuafe Aniqesiq]
91/0t/6 (SYS/AU/HNQ) $3214108 [euswdofasa(g ayess Jatpedo) Suiq q[eys %
-Zu/101 (T ISNQY 90UBISQNS PUR SIONI[IqeSI([ [eIuswdo[oas(] ‘Y eaH [RIUIN 1B} SA0IN0sAI/FULpUry apracad [[im [IoUN0D S
91/0€/6 JO UOISIAL(] oY} 3Im UONBIOGR[[0D Ul “JUSLISSISSE 21BIS-UT UB JONPLUOD S
217101 (1 1[1x Jyeis (N'TAS) SHomiaN digsiopes juowidofdwy 2318 o4 (1 off &
SYHT UTgim waisis oy} sjoword o)
pue sjoid wolj eyep awosno ajerodiosut 0} [ Woy yoeanno asy (9

‘SISBQ 9D1AIDS-10]-99] B UO SYH] UIIm Pasn aq ($2014438 S, ua.pjy ) 1pUONA2IXY ‘UONINAISU]]

C10T/1€/8 01 11 MO[[E [[La JRY] WRISAS O} JO] JUSIIONAUS Juamaeuel € 21eal)) (€ 215gnd fo 1daq D) sennqusi(] jonioatiaiu]|

+10Z/1/6 (9 "$103J021Ip $,UIP[IYD [eUondeoxy YH'T 10] $90USIJUOD YN SpUBpNIS 10f Sapniy pup suonvIoadxsy

S10Z/15/8 91818 2JOW 10 U0 0] 3JBP 03 2ALRNIUL Y} JO SIMSD1 3 Juasald (¢ SUISIDY w1 $201442§ UONISUDL] fO 2]0Y a4 ]

-$10Z/1/6 (S ‘87 Jouped ¢ :JoOYOS YSIE] 423f Suruip pup Suiuipy

910T/1¢/8 Ul $]00Y9S [RUCHIPPR Z[ PUE S[OOUDS JRUISIO § Ul UCHBN[EAS JONPUOD . SSPOONG 07 UOTHSUDAT,

-S10z/1/6 (¥ PUR 1S3]-P[91} PUE [DPOW U] JO UOISIDA Paseq-gam ‘[enyiul dojaaaq (g

SI0T/1¢/8 “UOBEN[BAS JONPUOD pue spaou oddns Jo sjpAs] dd/l
-+10Z/1/6 (€ [[e 10} PUR [Z PUR Z[ UdamIdQ (][ YILM SIUIPNIS I0] SSUIONNO pue EgﬁgahﬁﬁﬁéagGgﬁﬁgom
P10Z/1€/8 B[OOLLIND Pasnooj-uonisuel) e sapraoid jeyy adAjojoad soded e ajear) (g Jo aatsnpur ‘sanmunjroddo o1u10u003 M.
-£10Z/1/6 (€ () SONIIGeSIP [BNIDI[[IIUI YIm SIUDPMIS JOJ SSWODING UOHISUET) 10} AJIUNUIIOD SY) UI §$900E aspalouy ©
P102/1€/8 Buiaoxdurr 107 ‘[3A3] [0OYDS A[PPUA 213 1 Swuuidaq ‘jepowr & 01 s901n0sa1/Furpung opiaocid [[im [10UN0YD) M
-c1oz/1/6 (1 Sunsa) pue Surdoraasp ur ajedionted o) (syg]) seoualdy uoneonpy &
[8007] 2213 AJnjuapt ‘(14(T) uononusu] d1qng jo justpedot yim (I gyl =

SOUT[SWIL], PUR SANIANDY ‘$3ANIB[Q() ‘S[e0n)
Ug[d 2Je]§ B3 A 9414 90T - 110C AUDON
L1130 ¢



U VEN wed mm e a Wl R UeE DN AN DN U DN AN BB AN Dm P
o

1

SW 910Z/€1/1 parepdn

(uoISNIoUT AJIUNIUIO))
P1/05/6 "s[euoIssayoId uonesnps pue sjuspns ‘sjuared Juowe 40f ampysuy) $$200ng f0 uwng oy Sutyovay|
-€1/1/01 (§ aseq a8pajmouy a3 puedxs 0] oNUNUOD 0} ‘BOUBT[Y UoHEINPH
S1/0€/6 A1Bpu0025-1504 243 Ui diysiauired ur ‘aouarajuos apimalels € p[oH (S "sarjod pue seonorld 150q Funussaid
2i/101 & ‘aq/1 Y sympe SunoA pue [InoA 10J sawooino uoiesnps SHUUINS 9PIMITIE]S PUR [BUOITAI JO SILISS -
€1/0¢/6 K1epuooas-jsod pue juswWAo[dwa pasueyus 0} PEI[ {[1m B Sa1331R1)S ® yBnory; uoneonps Arepuodss-jsod pue j1om 3
-z1' o1 {¢ vonzjuows[dun Furpnpour uefd o13arens ‘Areuruwnaid dopasq (v loy seanwmnuoddo pue suondo Burpueisiepun| I
91/0£/6 ‘0Je]s 2y} JO Suoidal JusIayip ¢ ut spununs Juwueyd o13aens ¢ (g ur (/1 YA SIUSPIs pue SoL[Iure) Isisse 2|
-z1/1/01 (z ‘ssonoerd juswAodus 03 sadInosal/duipuny apraoid [[im [PUTOD|
€1°0€6 2ANNRdUI0 PUE UOLISURI) PISEQ-22UIPIAS JO MITARI dIIRINI] (T m
~z1/1/01 (1 ‘2oRIUWod Suiad)s apimaess e Jo juswdoeasq (1 S «
-ayyysur Surures],
HOYUVAS 102(014 2y} JO S3ULIAIJO 38IN02 IAI[DP pue ajowosd (§ (pndsopy nowoui?)} HONYAS 10204
91/0€/6 "saonoead 152 pur suoneAOUUl SULIeyS pue Suilley 10} sa)IS
-¢1/0¢/6 (S wessord HOWVAS 109014 eurjose)) YuUoN [[B Wwoy soanejuasaidas ‘aAd/] Y spuapngs 10j sdiysirojur pouSisap
S1/0€/6 Iopaf o1 3uLIq 03 (8)BUNsoW SPIMIIE]S U JSBI] JB duaauo)) ({ Aeo13arens ydnony) Sururen s{{Iys-qol
-€1/05/6 (& "3dAs Zurpuny Fuunp uonuaidr qol pue juswsoeld qof “yusw|oua JueAd[aI puR ‘vojrIC[dXs 10oIeD ioggj W
91/0€/6 Juopnys uo says werdord HHYVAS 10sloid e uo Bep 109[j0D (¢ WOOISSE]O SAUIQLIOD JBY) WeI3od Jiom| g
-€1/0€/6 (€ 'S$31IS HOYVAS -01-00Yos ‘Ted4-0u0 ‘paj-ssaursng v st yowm| §
91/0¢/6 10fo1d # Sunsixs ur uonewas|dUNl WN[NOLLIND JUSUSA[OAU] aANRHIUL UOT)ISURY [00Yy2s Y3y & jusws|duny %
-¢c1/0¢€/6 (T Apure] ySnongy HOYVAS 102[014 U justaA[oAut A[iwey s8emoosuy  (Z 03 $301n0821/3uIpuny apraoid (i [OUNOD|
91/0€/6 sueidold mou 9 Fuippe Aq euUl[OIE]) YUON W
-¢1/0¢/6 (1 ut sa31s wergord HOYvAS 1wslo1d pasuadif Jo Isquiny o) aseaiou] ([ LI =

SOUT[OWII] PUE SITIIAIIY ‘S2ATI2[QQ) ‘SROD)

UE|d 91elS I8 A SALL 910T -~ 110C AUDION
L1IoOY



Sw 910Z/€1/1 pakepdn)

"$}10]J0 SueyD
swa)sAs/Zuiping A11oedeo/A0BI0APE JO SSAUIALDIYJR S$AS8Y (8
‘a3uep
Z10Z/0€/90 suraysAs/Furp[ing A1oedeo/A0ed0ApE 10§ $2IERES pajos(os 10d1e] (1
- 110T/10/01 (8 :swieadoid 10 sFUnIes 21ed [00YISIAYR (ouy ‘UOISSTUIUO )
Z10Z/0€/90 pue priyo [eardA3 ut g/ Y [pnoi pue UIP[IYO JO UOISNdUL iaudojaad(] piiyD UidISoMYINog)
- 110Z/10/01 (L a1} 19 SUOT}EPUSUILIOS] 3w 0} dnoid Jap[oyadels JUsAU0D) (9 2407 JOOYIS L2} pub pPiiyD)
Z10¢/0£/90 ‘sweidoid 10
- 1102/10/01 (9 s3uI9s 2182 [COYDSIZYE puR PIIYo [eo1dA ul (/T Yim YIneA pue (21m111SU] Yo.4D2$2Y| wa
Z10Z/0€/90 UDIPHYQ JO UOISN[DUL 1)) O] SIatleq AJ1uspl 0} Surpuny ajeao[y (¢ SIDINABG UDUWNLT) SAWYSHOYD)Y 102Y] W
- 110z/10/01 {8 ‘spogye aBueyd o
210Z/0€/60 suwivIsAs/Surping L3eded/A0ed0APER JO SSOUDANO]YS $SASSY (I "SOI[IWEY JISY) pue (J(I/] Yim o[doad 105 W
- 110Z/10/01 (¢ ‘a8ueyo uotsnjoul pue ‘eouspuadapur ‘Ajagonpoid M
Z102/0€/60 SuINSAS/BuIping Aledes/AoedoApe 0] $a1331B1)S Palod)ds 18], (¢ ‘uoneIdoiul aoueApe Jeu) soouoeld]  ~
- 1102/10/01 (€ ‘AT ynm ardead 10y sdiysuone|al pue saroijod jo yuswdojoaap a1 poddns o3 W
Z10Z/0£/60 91Bs ‘Ayjreay sourApe Jey) saonoead pue sarorjod Jo juswdojosap SUONBZIURFIO 10] 20UR)SISSE [BOIUYD) pug|
- 110Z/10/01 (T QY 191 SHOTIRPUSWLLOD3] 9Yew 03 dnoid Jap[oysye:s suaauo) (g UoUEBINSUO ‘FUIULRI) punj [[La [LoUNe)) M
[10Z/1€/21 ‘@A yna oidoad 1oy sdysuonear ajes “Ayijesy S
- 110Z/10/01 (1 Jo juswidofosdp sy 0} SI0LLIRq AJUSpY 0] BuIpuny 938d0[y (] I N
QUYL | | SaNIAldY uoneyuwa[du saAndlq

103

*SA[RUE} ) pue /1 Y doad yo spsau
Yy 03 puodsal 0) STUISAS AIIAIBP INAIIS Jo AJI[Iqe Y) asoxdury [[Ias [PUNG)) ) Jo $)A0)J2 dBueyd swaysAs pue Smpjing Aoeded ‘Adedoapy
SAAAN S:4TdOdd OL ASNOJSTT WHILSAS T1VOD

SOUI[OWIL], PUB SINIATIOY ‘$2A102[q() ‘s[eor)
Ueld 91e1S§ s A 2Al4 910T - 1107 AUDON
L13O0€



npn
o
el

SW 91QZ/E1/1 Poepdn

“worneudwadurn
Aorjod [erepa) pue ‘2jeis ‘[8OC] SINSUD 0} SpIeoq Uonelodsury

"gJes pue J[qIXa[J ‘O[qel[21
‘a]qIssoooe ‘o[qepIrolje aie jey) suondo)
uonenodsuel) saey (/] Yim ajdoa

—110¢/10/01 (1

9107/0£/60 £4q (1 [220] uo (/1 Pim 21doad jo uonedionued sy sjowold (1 b'T
*AJTUNUIKEOD 29U} U 3AT] O YSim oym (/] YHm
ordoad 10] uonisuern [MIssodoNs Y3 2NSUI pue 1/ Yyim ajdosd 0y
SOUION 9JeD JINPE IO 100D JUOL o1 250[2 01 Juuxdan|q, ® dojasaq (¢ (N siy3ny Qupqosur) /T
A/ Ynm ynm 2jdod g A0f SFWOET 24073 IINPY w04
910T/1€/8 S[enpPIAIpUL 10} SUIAL] AJUNUIIOD O} SIDLLIB] SSASSe pue AJuuap] ($ SUONISUDAL o110 puv 2211004 Su13piig
-S10Z/1/6 (S "ANUNUWILIOD 21} Ul WY 0] SUIoY 2183 Jnpe ue
S10C/1¢/8 wiol Jumonisuey ut (4Q/1 Y SeNPIAIPUL (Q) XIS 18I JR 1SISSY (€ UMO 10 Ju31
-v10Z/1/6 & "s3UIes AJUNWIWOD Ui SAWOY SoT[IUIR) 131 10 A1) o) owIoy & Ul FuIAl]  ta
910Z/15/8 0} S3LWOY 218D J[NPE WO UOWISURL) 123 JBI[IOR] O] SO 1B Surpnjour ‘Ajunurnuod s1j ut SulAl] 10j W
-v1o0z/1/6 (€ ynpe ut FUIAI /1 Yis s[enpialpur o) poddns ‘Aoeooape opiaocid (z suonydo axowr aaey 0} 0/ Yum ojdoad 105  §
S10Z/1€/8 uondo (1) ueld 29LIS soonjoeld pue ss1o1jod Jo juswdoppasp syl ¥©
+v10z/1/6 (2 PIEDIPIIA] S]QB[IBAE AUR JO ‘$3O1AISS PIPUILY-D]B)S ‘SIOTAISS IOATRM uoddns 03 s201n0s21 ap1aoid [im [1ouno)) =~
$107/1¢/8 pased AJUnuuIo)) pue sWoH J10J 9[qQI3I[o 2q AvWI oym BUI[0IR]) w
-10Z/1/6 (1 YHON Ul S3WOY 3180 3[NpE Ul SUIAT (IC/T YIlA S[ENPIAIPUL 91800 (] g7 =
("ouy ‘amjiisuj
dovs0oapy oy J) Surypudanjod ui 42U |
"SR] X3} pue (/] Ym d[doad 1o
uorsnour pue “souspusadapur ‘Ayanonpoid
‘uvonerdsur poddns jey saonoeld
pue s2101j0d 103)JE 0} S2}BOOADR-J[3S
pue sjualed 10] aouLISISSE [BOIUYOD) PUE|
uoneNSUoo ‘SUIUTRI} pUnj Jjim [IOUNOD) oma
9102/0£/90 m.
ureisord j; Surjews1j04 Ul sxsule 1o} Suipury eso[|y {1 T %

L1309

SOUI[OWIL], PUB SANIANDY ‘S2ANIBIQO ‘S[eOD
Ueld 21818 JBa A SAL] 910T - 1107 AUDDON



Sw 9107/€1/1 perepdn)

€10Z/1€/S "OUIDIpoU [ejustudojaAsp HNpe Ui SUIUIE) oY) JO 9ANO3[JaL
-z10Z/1/9 (s s1 Jer syuaned 03 21ed apeLSUCWSP [JIm Suluien Ul sjuaptsay (¢ (421u37y UORPINPT YIJDIL]
T10T/1E/S "Apnys P24y UIDIURORY) JUIDIPIJN [DIUdMA0]DAS(]|
-z b oy ur ajedioipied [ oyam saonoeld 2u) urgia sueisAyd Ajnpuspy (p "1 2AIDYIU] WNTNILLINDY [DUCHDA] W_
CI0¢/1e/E “WINJNOLLIND &
-210Z/1/1 (€ oy jopid 01 s31s FuLuIes) AOUSPISAI SUIDIPIA AJIWR] 2IN03S (¢ "$O0IALRS 218D Y)[eay pazijemads| &
110Z/1€/21 ‘dnoid L1osiape ue doesa(q (7 pue Arewrtid papast Jo a3uel [ji .m
-11oz/1/1 (2 "umdIpau [ejuswido[dAdp 9y} 03 §S3008 2ARY [ (ICI/T Yiim 21doad ,M.
110Z/1€/21 Jnpe Ul UoleoNps eoIpawi ajenpeid-1sod pue ‘Tespaw S
~110z/1/1 (1 ‘rearpaw-axd Ul SUIIRI] JO] WINJROLLIND B 10§ JUSIU0D 9100 AJHuapy (] 9°7i ™
"$IUIUISD WOY YI[BAY/[EOIPIUI PIOURYUD 3len[ead pue 1831 1011J (£
oM
910Z/1€/8 JUSLLISSHSSE SSBUIPRI f)Im ‘218D JO [9POW DN 2[qeuoijor ao_owom (v
-+10z/1/9 (L “sjusuIaImbal
Q102/1€/% [euoneonps pue poddns aonoeld pasuerus ‘asnradxa [euorssejoid
-+10Z/1/¢ (9 1$nqos 0 2INGLIIUOD Jey] $3I39)eNS [B1008 JO Justidojassp aU)) 0}
910T/1€/8 Axessaoau saouLiRdI0d SWOH YesH pue [edIPIA (1,1 AJuuspl (S
-$102/1/¢ (S 23ueyd WlsAs ajqeureisns
¥I02/1€/€ pue 2oueinsse Anjenb Junowosd ur sinouaidonus Aoijod (VA pun DN J0 J711 Sipas 421805) /]
-+10Z/1/21 (& ywoddns 0] WNHIOSUO)) JOPIACIJ-OIIDPEYY-A)UNIIWOY) Ystjqeisy (§ ynm 23doa g 10f wOF] YIvaE] jooIPIN|  n
S10T/1€/8 “BJEP JUBAS[S1 121 askq 28 pajmouny] o) aaoidwl o} suondo ..w-
-$102/1/6 (€ olJA[eUR PUR S[R[IEAR BIED SWIOOINC PUE 1500 ‘ssadoid AJruapl (g "SODIAISS 218D Pp[eaY pazijeoads ]
S107/15/8 "SRUIODIN0 PUB §1S03 ‘UOBZI[NN pue Arewizd popasu jo sfuei fnyf  ©
“p102/1/6 (T ‘spaau ‘uonerndod a1 Fuipue)sispun uo aseq SFpI[mou)] oY} 0} SS23008 AARY [{tM (I(T/T Yy 2[doad m
$10T/1€/8 a1 aaoxduir 01 sa[yoId pwNsuoo ‘paunojul-eiep ¢ dofpasd (g S
-£107/1/6 (1 "SU01853$ FULIBULS-UONRULIOIUI /-9 Ul SIOpJoyexels afedug ([ s7 <

105

SOUI[SWIL ], PUB SONIATIOY ‘SOANDDQ() ‘STROD)
. UB[d 91815 183 X dAL] 9[0T - 1107 AUIDN
LTIOL



SN TN PN Y A TN U AE BEE et P W A Ga b e e e M
=)
i

sw 9[Q7/E1/1 potepdny

(s2010458 Jpnpy pup Sulay fo uoisiald DN)
SPANDULDITY dANILISDY SSF'T 40
2svy ¥ Suippng (diysunipipng Supiulyiayl
AT Y
s1doad 10] UOnBUIULR}SP-[9S PUB UOISN]OUY
910Z/1€/8 ‘uonyeIgoyut ‘aouapuadaput ‘Ayianonpold
—-910z/1/S (& ‘SUOTIUSAISIUL FUBYD UWINISAS/AIBD0ADR ‘uonriSaul soueApe 18y ‘drgsueipiend] ¢
910/ 16/% 10} S3IG5IENS PaIos]es 198ae) pue sButpuly sjeSnwicld (p 0] SAlIBUIN[® pue dlysuriptens of 3alje[a) m
—¥102/1/6 (€ ‘SU0JYS adueyd SWR)SLs/A0Bd0ApR ‘saonpoead pue sarorjod jo juswdopasp|  §
P10/ 1€/L JO SSOUSATI0a3J3 YY) IDURYUD O} GOURJSISSE [BOIUND) piacld (€ a1y poddns 03 2oUR)SISSE [RDIUYDA] puUEp X
-v10z/1/L (T ‘(s)jornU02 OJuT J23ud pue Surpuny Jo (shusidiosr 109198 (7 UonRIOSUOd ‘FuIuiery punj J[im [Louno)) M
¥10Z/1€/€ 'AC/T Yy sfenplalpur Joy digsueipiens o} ssanjeuIo)e S
—v10Z/1/1 (1 pue drysuerpiend Suissaippe uoneolddy 10 ysonbay dopasg (1 (S102/11 PPPPY) 8T <
(5201043
sontqosiq wiusuidojaas(y fo sio10.41()
2IDIS O uONDIDOSSY JDUOHDN) dADLIU]
WUMIBOIUS] A2P1OYIYDIS WiQ2Y PIDIIPIN
"SOIfIUIe] 1I9Yf) pue
aasn yma aidoad Jo spasu o 03 puodsal] ¢
Y10T/1€/80 0] SWIDISAS AIBAT[SP 9IIAI3S JO AN[IqR 3] m
-c10z/1/11 (¢ 'suoIssnosip dnoid wo poseq siaded ajym areutwassip pue atederd (¢ aaoxdun yoym sweidoid syt 10y yoesyno|  §
F10Z/0€/90 “SWIIOL/SF UL Iaployede;s X1s 0} dn ajeyjoed (g pUB ‘ASRD0ApPE ‘AJ[IQRIUNOIOL NS Jey) ¥
—-<1oz/1/11 (2 ‘2Je1s Q) JO ANSIBAIp oIU)e pue d1ydeiSoad oy Jo sanoapjal saonosal/Burpung op1aoid [[im [rouno) m,r”
e10T/1¢/01 S1 pUE 9SEISIP SALOIPPE pUe SaNIIqesIp [Bjuowdofoaap Yijeay 3
-¢r1oz/1/6 (1 [BIUSW ur A)I[IqesIp-s$010 st Jel) dnosd seproyaye;s e dopasqg (] o7 =
£10Z/1E/S “weadoad o1 JO JUSLISSISSE
-zioz/i/zL (@ - J198 pue uonen|ead ue 2o[durod 03 sjuspisal pue Aynoej (2
ST0T/1€/5 "830UDIAJUOD
-Z102/1/9 (© [euoissajoid je pajussaid ale sawodno pile wnmoLun) (9

SSUI[AWI ], PUB SSNIANDY ‘$2A103[Q() ‘S[eOn)
Ueld 918§ 1BaA 3AL] 910T - [ 10T AUDION
L13o8



107

sw 910z/€1/1 parepdn

"(ICU/T Uit suostad 103 s19158S1p 10
suonendseAd Suunp uonepodsuel) Jo spoyjaw ‘9je)s sy Jnoysnoy)
‘Kaaans ‘uononnsu] 21qud Jo jusuwiiedsq DN pue uoneodsuel],
jo ywawaeda DN Yim uoneICqe[[0d ul - uoyeypodsuer] (9
"Ad/T Y S[eRpIALIpUL 204
ue[d ssoupaedaid Aousdiown ue Jo uoneald oY) Furjqeus ‘s3ueyd
910Z/0%/6 Aorjod a0Uan(ju 0} pIRPUE]S APIMOIEIS B USI[qRISS - uolsiatdng (g (A12fp$ onpgng fo wawiindaq HN)
~C107/1/6 (9 "asuodsal 1)ses1p K420002y puv ssaupa.ivdaig Adousdiouis
9102/0£/6 AJT82 UO pajeonpd aq ued (J(J/1 Yim suosidd yoiym ur swreagord
-c1oz/1/6 (g ssaupatedaid AousSrows AJQuapi - sdudpuddapu] Jeuonoung (y “SLUIOISAS
910Z/0€/6 Juswaeuew 1215eS1p pue Suluiel) pue saanpasold pajejal pue ‘asuodsal
-€10Z/1/6 (& ssauparedoxd AouaGrows Jo uonelodiooul oY) ssasse - [ROIpIIN (€ Aouagiawe ‘uoreiedard Jasestp Joj ¢
9102/0€/6 "‘adyI Y suosiad Kyoedes spjing jey) pue (/1 Yaiw suosiad]  §
-c10z/1/6 (¢ AQ A[2A1302]2 PISN PUE PAIBJIUNIILIOD A[IPER] 3¢ UBD SPOYIdUIL pue Jo aasnjoul s yey; weidoid ssauporedad, mr
910T/0€/6 UOTIBUWLIOJUI JO 1d19021 QINSSE 0] SPUAI) PUR S[OO) UOLJEDIUNUILIOD KouoFiowe Ue uteyuIRW pue JuswRdwr %
-€102/1/6 (2 ssouparedsid AousTIowd JUILND $$8$B - UCEdWNUIUCY) (T 0} $291n0s31/301puny api1aold [JIa [ouno) M
Y10Z/0€/6 A/ Yim suostad S
-€10Z/1/6 (1 0] pIESDI (IM ISIADE 0} PIROY AIOSIAPY [EDIUUYDA] B 2UDAUOY (] @T0T/1I PPPVY) 017 =
(2impnasu] Qqpsi(y joUOLvN)
App1quig rouvuly 03 pipmds)
91/0£/6 “Buiping Atedes Ajunwiuiod
—$10T/1/1 (B 3[qruIR)SNS 10] $21391eI)S POIdaas 1w51e] pue s3ulpul) sjednuwold (¥ S[IYS SuIp[INg] e
91/0€/6 "su0y3e Fuip(mng Aypeded AEINUod 198se pue Aoeisyl] [eroueuy Suido[sasp Aq| m
-¥10z/1/1 (€ JO SSQURAIINAIIA OU) 2OUBYUD 0] IDUBISISSE [BIIUYDII) 9PIA0Ld (€ [ADUSIDIIINS-J]IS SO0V douBApPE 01 (1(I/] m
91/0€/6 "($)10R1U02 OJUl Jajua pue Fulpury Jo (sHualdioar 109[9S (7 P a1doad 1o sanunpoddo sjowoad]
-+107/1/1 (T A/ YHm S[ENPIAIPUL I0] UOTIeIaAdSIad pue Juautrdo[2Ap 0) $321n0$21/3UIpury IP1A0Id [JIm [1oUNo)) M
91/0€/6 1985B/A0B10]1] [BIOUBUIJ O] P2IB[AT SIAUQ PUE S19LLIeq Ad1jod 3
~-bioz/1/1 Q1 Jo jusuIssasse oY) ul 3s1sse 03 uonesrddy 10 1sanbay doppasg (I (sT0Z/TI P3PPY) 6'T N

SOUI[AWI ] PUB SINIANDY ‘S9A102q() ‘S[EOD)
Ue[d S1BIS JBIA 9Al4 9107 - 1107 AUDDN
L1306



™

SW 910Z/€1/1 parepdp)

(sa1000APY AJ11IQUSK(T JO

20UDIIY DN) IUPBY DISLT YAOMIAN VTV
HAOMIDN]]

(Y QV) $2u31qusI(] Ylim SUDILBUY DN

>
¥
3
"QOUBNIU JO o..um.
91027 SS3[ JO SABP ¢ UIYNM MIOMION VAV DN Ul Woy uouejustunsop “SONIUANILIOD [ed0] 1aY) o
/0€/6 ~210T/1/L (& Uojet pUDy-Ul pue $)senbar JuswasmquIel $3ssa001d (¢ | W (VAV) 1OV SPNL[IGRSI( [PIM SUBDLIDUIY|
910 ‘sdnoJd a1 i douelduios Alejunjoa sjoword)  §
/0€/6 -TIOT/ /L (€ s1001888J3 ‘mou 7 10 Juluen yQy pue diysiopes] onpuo) (g Je1}} saAljElIUL Jonpuos 0 moE_Bmmj .M.
0107/0¢/6 "sued I3 Jn0 AL1es 0} sdnoid yim ojdoad £q poj sdnoid proddns|
-0/ 1/L (2 [B20] 0} UruTEr) pUR 30URISISSE [BOIUYDd) ‘dn-moO[[0) apiaold (7 0} saoanosa1/Burpuny apiaoid [[1m [OUNo)) M
9107 ‘stre[d 2AnBIIUL AJTUNTUUIC m
/0€/6 -710T/1/L (1 VAV dopoadp 03 saniqesip yim o1doad 3o sdnoid yim jnsuo) (1 A X
aay/I yim a1doa |
1ISUIDIY dOUBJOL4 O1ISIUWO(] PUD 22UB}014
jonxag Suissaippy . A4n2a9 puv (afvs]
/T YA SWIDIA JO SPasu 3y Jaalul
01 s[oo} 241 yiim Jyeis woddns 2ouajoral
uejd j10m ansswop pue sjeuorssajoid poddns| s
paaoadde s 291ueI3 0) BUIpIOddE JANBNIUL JO 1834 1811y IInosxy (¢ 10011p dinba 03 pue uLrey pue ‘4o0(3oU] m
910Z/0€/6 souerd 109128 (T ‘asnqe woly ajes Judq Ul WY} ISISSE O) m.
—¥10z/1/1 (g A/ YHsm SWIDIA JO SPasu a1j) 198wl pue §40J12 uonuaadad UCHBWIOUT Ylim (I(1/ yim ojdoad apiaocad] =
croz/1tl (T aA0Idwt 0) S[RS dO[3A3P 0} JJBIS aSU0dsal 20U[01A O1JSOWOP 0] $30IN0SaI/FUIpuny apiacid [[Im [1OUNo)) M
€102/1/21 pue jyes poddns 10011p 10) BnoLLMd Juturen) ‘paseq-aonoeld 159q S
— ¢107/1/6 (1] Jo yuawdo[aaap sy poddns o aousjoia opsawiop uo v Y 9sed[dy (I (e102/10) porpy 11yl R

L1Jo 01

SQUI[IWI [, PUB SSNIAIIDY ‘S2AN03[qQ) ‘S[eOD)
ueld 2e.1§ IBa A SAL] 910 - 110 ATDIN



109

sw 9[0z/¢1/1 parepdn

910Z/0€/60 (wonpiSaiU]
- €107/10/L0 (L OATBIIUL §(OD) JO SSOUATIONID S$3sSY (¢ AJIunuino’y £0f 2npsUy) douUDISISSY
910T/10/01 ‘Burutey paaocidde ue se apimae)s §(I) SUdULAPE 10] S913a1BNS jpotuyoay jioddng 12417 o 2321100
- 1107/10/01 (9 | Sutpuny Aynuapt pue Supurern pascidde-a1els e 9q 0) () 10J I0APY (9
910Z/10/01 sdsQ 10} syjed 100180 FUIOUBADE ‘WNMILLIND SO (ouf ‘Yosvuop)
- 110Z/10/01 (S 1011d 159) 0} WeYsAs aFs[joo Anmuruod 0y sproddns Lressaocau apiaotd (¢ as4no7y Jo241(1/140ddng Jos.41(J fo 282110
110Z/1€/21 ‘uondope apimaje)s ajowoad 0 aonoeid paseq-ssudpIAL
- 1107/10/01 (b ue SE 9ANRIOqR[[0)) awsACIdW] 201j0RIJ 9111s 03 §(ID Uesaird (¥ A/ ynm spdoad iy
Z10T/0€/60 (VY.L SOD) sans S 01 uone)nsuod woddns oym siaxiom poddns 1va.1p 10] s
= 1102/10/01 (€ pUB aoue)SISse [BOIUL9] paadie) spiacid o1 Suipuny a1edo(y (€ B[NOLLMD paseq-Aouaadwos pue ~aauapias( §
910Z/10/01 ‘Aoua1ay00 [apow da01duir 01 JWAWIdO[IAIP JOUIBI] ‘parepiea SWIZIn sIouWIed| o1} ‘Iaqumuyl ¥
- 110z/10/01 (T puB WNJNOLLING 121 $31S Ul YDIeasat JONpu0d 0] SuIpuny 21ed0[[y (7 U200 31) puoAaq ‘puedxa [[im [1OUN0O) m
910Z/10/01 (SIS DIOUIL JO [ SB[ JB 0} 354n07) 3021/ SaD) noddng W
- 110Z/10/01 (1 10011(T J0 933[[0)) 9Y) JO uoneusuIdu puedxa 0) Suipunyg 2380V (] I'gl

QUIIIL |, $aNIANY uoneuRudpdwg sasnlqo

*SOTIUIE] IY) pue /1 Y afdoad
SIAIIS JBY) DAOPIOM 3Y) JO S[[TYs PUE AFPI[MO 21} da0xdius [[Im [DUNG)) ay) Jo s)I0)j2 aSueyd swdysis pue Impnng Hredes ‘Sredoapy
STVYNOISSTAOUL/dIHSHIAVAT -IOHODNIOM-SLHOdd NS £ ' TVOD

SDUIOUWIL] pUR SSNIANOY ‘S3A1}02[q() ‘S[eon)
Ueld ajer§ 1ea X 3ALI 9107 - 1107 AUDON
LEIONI



Illlllllllllllllll‘

sw 910z/€1/1 parepdn

"WN[ROLLMSD 10 $9918 Jo[td DN 1oy (g
9TOT/E/60 ‘uoleu "aqy1 Y ofdoad
- 110Z/10/01 (€ ay) pue DN ul sueisAyd jo Suuren Yy} OJUT auloIpew [BlUswdo[2Asp JO Spa3all 3y} 1991 03 $3014138 Ajl[enb apiaoid
910Z/0£/60 jJape Suippaquis Jo [e08 3y} adurApE 0) sisuyed o13aes BY0 pue 0] A)[Iqe IOy} $9SBAIOUT BT S[euo1ssaJold ny
- 110Z/10/01 (2 SAJIGeSI(] U0 SIBJUS)) AUSIRATU JO *00SSY 9} ‘WNIIOSUO)) uoljednpyg 19430 Jo Sururey pury Jjls JOUNCD! R
9102/0¢/60 SUIIPIIA ATIWIE ] U3 ‘UONRPUNO.] LBIA-TEA U) PUE ANSHUS([ PUB o
- 1102/10/01 (1 QUIPSIA [RIsdO[2Ad(] JO AWSPEIY UBDLAUNY ST YIIm 93e10qe[[0D (] pgl o
"(C1/1 3O P[2Y oY) Ul sispea]
Jo juomdoraasp 3y ajowosd 03 Sumunuod 10y sa1dajens dofpasg (s
‘[IoUnC)) 0) SUCTJEPUSLLIIUOAI Juasald (§
"SATJBIIIUL JO SSOUSAIOSYIS §5388Y (€ (so1111qUSI(T ppusudofoaa(] w1 winy40s1o))

(11 sse|D ‘siepea] Fuong SuUBAPY) A/ JO PI21 24} ul s[euoissajord diysaopvay jpuonDN) IJ pUv [ SSDID)
9102/0€/60 Aq (g DN 91Eonpa pue wnojul 0} paudissp ‘Suiuren Jead-ouo e 0} WN[noLInd 153 P1aL . SaLIqOSI(T Piautdo]aas(]
9107/1€/50Aq (b |Q Ul siopeaT Suong Suoueapy AJIpow 0} Sanl[iqesi(] [eiuswdofaas( 2y} U1 S42PD2T SU04IS BUIDUDADY]
$102/0€/60 £q (¢ ur wnposuo)) drysiapes| [euoneN 23 0 Suipuny 93ed0[y (7

9102/0¢/60 (1 sseD sIopeer| Buong SuOURAPY) "qQ/1 JO PIPY 5 "s[euoissoroid Aa/1 $
- Z2102/10/01 (T Ul s[euoIssajoId DN 21edNPs pue ULIOJUT 0} WN[hotling Jeak-03my ‘(aqd 10y Suruten diysispes] puny [[Ls [12UNOD)|
110¢/1€/21 ul s15pea] Suon§ FUURAPY AJipowr 0} sanI[iqesi( [eusuIdolaadd m.
-110Z/10/01 (1 ur wnprosuo)) diysiopea’] jeuoneN ayj o) uipuny 33ed0o[ v (I €¢ 9
910¢/1¢/8
—910Z/1/S (¥ a8ueyo
9107/1€/8 W9ISAS/A0BO0APE 0] S2130]81)S Pajoalas 1031r) pur sFuipury syednword (4 ‘Aa/1 Yim opdoad poddns
—-p1ozi/L (€ "$1I0JJ0 9FUBYD SWIDISAS/ADBIOAPE oym $apIND) ANUNWLHO)) PUB SIORUIPIOOD)
Y 102/0€5/h JO SSIUDATIOYID 21} SOURYUS 0] 2OURISISSE [BOIUYOI) opraoctd (¢ 218 10} Suren paseq-Aouajadurod
— 10z 1v (2 "(8)1oexuoo ojul 10jus pue Jurpuny Jo (s)usidioal 3[pg (g sjowold 03 so1391ens puny [[im [OUNOD)
vI0Z/1¢/¢ ‘dd/1 Wim S[enplAlpul 10} Sapinf
-+10z/1/1 (1 Amumwuio)) uoreurpioo)) a1y 10j (s)uoneorddy 1oy jsanbay dopeaa(g (| ré

SOUTJaUWI |, PUB SIDIAIOY ,mozuoo_.ﬂ_o ‘Ss|eOD)
Ue[d 211§ Tea X 3Ald 9107 - 1107 AdION
Lriogi



111

sw g10z/€1/1 pavepdny

(ouj
SYADWYIUSE) S]PUOISSI[04F 140ddNg 122.41(]
+40f doupyy1y JpUONDN 211 o 421dvY) DN
pantoddns Apjuapusdapur Sutaq o) psuoddns AU/ P m
0102/0€/T1 -jueid Fursq woy aideys JSAVN DN 241 Suluonisuen ul Jsissy (¢ spenpraiput Sunroddus 9010fy10m s001A108)
-910Z/1/1 (€ "SISQUIDW ()(}] PUB ‘Sme[Aq ‘SI0J03IIp uewnyy Juladutos L[Sy € Jo juswdoaaap M .
C10Z/05/T1 J0 pieoq e Yia J91deys JSAVN DN B 107 smmis ( £)(2) 106 ystqesq (g ay oyowoad pue speuo1ssajold Joddns|
-c10z/1/1 (2 "BUIjoIR) HON ul 1a1deyo JSQVN B JO SHJausq Sy} moqe JO211P JO SRS DU} S2UBYUD |[Im JIOUNOY) M
P10Z/0€/21 oiqnd [e19UaF pue so1oyy20m poddns 1001p 9Y) 21EONPS 0] IDUIIJUOD S
—-¥10Z/1/¢ (1 SPIM-2]B]IS SUO PUE SWNIO] [EUOLIAI § URY] $SI| OU SUSAUOD pue uejd () RN
a1
9102/0¢/6 Buipring Aypedes Luunumios A S[enplaiput o} justifojdus Jo eare
—-v1oz/1/1 (p 9[qQRUIRISNS 10] SSIFIIENS p21oo[os 1od.Ie) pue s3uipul{ ednwolg (4 QY3 ul $301A108 paacadur 2p1aoxd 03 Wy
9102/0€/6 "syI0p32 uipmg Ayoeded Ajunwiwos ut sjeuoissajord juswlojdus MO[TR [[I4 JRY) SAN[BA pUR ‘S[[IYS ‘2Fpajmouy]
1027171 (€ JO SS3UBATIO3J2 YY) IOUBYUD 0] JDUBJSISSE [BOIUYIA] 9pIactf (¢ ‘poddns a1 aary [[Ia s[EUOISSSyOId
910Z/0¢/6 ‘(shornuos 0T 191Ud pue Suipuny Jo (shusidioar 109195 (T JudwAofdius Jey) 0s SA0IN0sal/ZuIpuny
—¥10/1/1 (T "(C/] Wim s[enplAIpur 1o sioddns sp1aoxd 01 sayoeoldde 2I0]dxa [{im [IOUNOD
9102/0€/6 JuowAordwis 0} paje[al sjyauseq pue s1sLueq Ao1jod JO JUSWISSISSE
-$107/1/1 (1 oy ut 1s1sse 0} dnoi3 Japjoyaess 0y uonesi[ddy 1o jsanbay doppasq (1 (ET0T/TT PAPPY) §°¢
'§do3$ 1XoU I13PISU0D 0 29)WI0d FuLals Yyum Sunesm 1soH (¢
"$31e}S JOYI0
01 WN{NILLIAD 213 Jo uonensuowap jo(1d puedxs o1 sisuped oidsiens 2UIIIPRI]
910Z/0£/60 10110 PUB ‘QNCIVV Y} ‘SoAIRRIUL 218D 13[eay Arewiud Suionpuod JDIUDMAOIPAS(T JINPY U0 WRINDLLIN)
- 110Z/10/01 (P a1 Je1) SAnI[IqesI(] [PIuaswdolaAs(] Uo S[IUNOY) BYI0 YIim dJeIoqe{[o) (¢
SUIOUIL] pUB SAMNANDY ‘$2A1IIQO ‘s[rOD
ueld 21e1S Jea X ALL 910T - 110T (AIIN
L1140 ¢l



i IR FEE UGN N SR TGN WA el ENN TR MO JOE WA BEE WM s a e

SW 910Z/€1/1 parepdn)

"UONT[20D AJ[IQESIP
-SS0.I0 B UIISUaI)S PUB P{Ing 0} SUOLD JO SSOUDANIDLID ssassy  (/
9102/0£/60 49 (£ "senianoe Juawsdwy (9
£10Z/10/L0 Aq (9 ‘Joenuod ojuluy  (§
£10Z/10/L0 Aq (g quardoas puny 238 ( -sapmumoddo Suuren pue swoneOd
€107/0€/50 49 (¥ "TOT[e0D AJ1[IQESIP-$5010 © USYIZULNS pue p[ing 0} FuIpuny 3edo[[y (€ drysispea] ‘as10A1p Aj[eImnd ‘AN[IqesIp
€107'87/20 A9 (¢ "UORIROD -ss010 ur ojedionied o) /1 Ynm afdoad
£10Z/0€/90 Aq (7 AJ[IGESIP-SSOI0 B UISUNS PUB PlINg 03 SPOYJS I0] UOHEPUNO) 10] sanunyioddo ap1aoid [im [Iouno))
910C/0¢/6 © SE YIOMION UoNOY AN[IQesi(] DN 1) JO AN[Iqe1a 0Y) 8985y (T
- €102/10/90 (1 UoNIBod ANfIqesIp-ss0Id € J0 juawdopaap ay) noddng (| TH
ONVSY 423uo41s v Suippng :7 [/0€/6 PoPuy|
: (ISH)
PADBE $2010, 4nQ) SUBIDIY 17 [/0€/€ Popud|
TNVSY
9102/0€/60 oy woddns 0y sjqeyieae juswdinba pue ‘sarjddns ‘soeds ao1j0 el (¢ (ONVSF) ON
- 110Z/10/01 (8 "ONVSYV Jo soueuLopiad S0 s21030apy-fjag fo uONVIZOSSE) ONVSY]
1102/0¢/11 A&q (¥ 3 uonoeysyes Furpiedal diysisquiawl pue pieoq ONVSY Aoams (¥ 0} Jdoddns aomponysvafuy 7 [/0£/9 papud]
£10¢/0t/60 ‘drysiapea] [e00]
- Z210Z2/10/90 (¢ pue 23818 10Fu0ns € Jo yawdoppasp ayi woddns 0) Suipuny syeoco(y (€ ‘81030 0} Fuiuel)
Z10Z/0€/50 (ONVSY) diyszepesy apraoid 0} G/l yum afdoad
- 110Z/10/01 (Z DN JO S3IRO0APY J[0S JO UONRID0SSY 913 I0] IMOnLISRIUY [820] 103 sayrumaoddo opraoid [ JoUNo)
910Z/0£/60 pue aje}s @Fuons e Jo Judwdoppasp a1 poddns o3 Surpuny sedo[[y (T
- 1107/10/01 (1 "SHOLJ0 ASBO0APE-J[3S Spimaje)s poddng (] I'#

aurpw g, san Ay uoyejudwdpdu| $341393(4Q)

weldoxd Aded0Ape-J[9s SPIMIIE]S B UIYITUAL)S [[IM [IDUNO))
SNOLLVZINVOHO ADVIOAQVY ATAS ONINFH.LONTHALS/LIAOddNS '+ TVOD

SOUI[SWIT], PUB SATHANDY ‘SRANR[G() ‘SjEoD)
ueld 291§ 189 A 2414 910C - 1102 AAIOIN
LTIO ¥



lhe]
L]
L |

SW 910z/€1/1 parepdn)

"2FURYD WSAS/ADBI0ADE (Sarnup g ut 18414} j10ddng Zuijqis
10] SOI3dRIIS P10 1981e) pue surpul) sjedmuweld (v mm
"SHI0LJ9 9FUBYD SWDISAS/ADRIOADPE I9JSIS 10 JYI0Iq B J
910%/6 —S10Z/6 (¥ JO SS3UDATIOALYS 23U} 30UBYUS O) DOUBJSISSE [BOIUYDS) aplaotd (¢ 10} spoddns [ernjeu pue [eulojur Surpraocid N
S10T/8—¥10Z/6 (€ {(S)1PBNUOD(SPOBNUOI(S horIU0D UL (/1 Pias S[enplaIpul JO S3urjqrs isisse.
Y107/8 — 107/ (T o 1aue pue Surpuny jo (shusidoar 10apg (g 0} S20IN0SAI/FUIpUny IpIA0Id [jim [1OUNO)) rM
$102/8 A/ P S
—€107/11 (1 [srenprarpui yo s3uijqis Sunoddns 1oy uoneoyddy 105 ysonboay dopasg (1 (E10T/T1 PPPPY) |

. ‘PaIaIed YOoBrQPOD) UC PAsB] ADBO0ADE-I]2S opimale)s woddns (2ouptyjy 204n0say Quunuuwo))

189Q ued (ICIDDN Yl MOY I0] SUONBPUIUIIINIAL JO 128 B dojsad( (v PANDHNU] JOPDSSDQULY ADDOOAPY]

PI0T/1£/8 "[1o8N0Y) 0} SFUIPUY JUIGNS PUL IS

—v10z/1/v (¥ Furaangoe 03 sontunproddo pue sisLeq pue $[ROZ 113U} SUILLLSIAP 0} ‘S[9Ad] I
P10TZ/1€/€ DN sso1oe sdnoa8 Aoed0Ape-}195 A2AINS [[IM SIOpESSEQUIY AJBIOAPY (¢ 21B)S PUE ‘[RUOIFAI ‘[BIO] 31} JB SAJEO0ADE m..
- €10Z/1/11 (¢ -AHUnUILIoD DAI1D3}JS 9q 03 (AQ/L Y o1doad Jroddns W
C10T/1€/01 adyI1 2y} Suowe WO SIOPESSEqULY AJBICAPY ¢ UIRI) PUR JINIDDY (7 0] 1S2Q MOY SUIULNSP 0) DN Ul A0BI0ApE| =
- €107/ 1/6 (2 2591} -J[9S 3Y) JO 9RO I} SSISSE [[14 [IOUNOY) M
¥10Z/1¢/8 Buiaayoe 0} sanunuoddo pue swLeq pue sdnoi8 Aovdoape-1|as S
—-cloz//6 (1 [B20] JO ‘S[eOT o1} JO JUSUSSISSE opim-ole)s € 1toddns o) spunj aseapy (| (€T0Z/E1 POPPY) € N

SQUI[2WI |, PUR SANANIOY ‘$3AN[Q() ‘S[ron
ueld 29.1S 1ea A 341 9107 - 1107 (ADIN
L1IOS]



SW 9[0Z/€1/1 pavepdn

aanonuy 404 ongud FAION|
"SuUOnEIqI[Sp)
Korjod arpqnd ur ATnySurnesw Suredionied
. sol[Iwe] pue (I(1/] Yim s[enpiaipul oqowoad] &
ey} SO0IN0saI/BuIpuny apiaoid [[1m [1OUNO)) q...“
910T/0E/60 aZueyd SWSISAS o[qeUIRISNS 10} AdDOAPR S (IQDDON m.
- 1107710701 (1 a1} 2ouUBYUD 0} I8A[eUe Aoijod © WOy 35ur)SISSE I0] UIpuny 9jedo[|y (] 7'l o
(pas$34ppDIUS)) HOYDRIDAL
sovdut] “(p 107/0£/9 PoPUT) $52001g]
910T/0€/60 ‘sure1do1d ue[d 2181S PIIa[es Jo jordill $5a8se 0] UOHBN[RAS Jonpuo)) (§ 03 INOY MUMDPBDUD WDAB04 ‘CTOT/I/E]
- 1102/10/01 (¢ ‘(03 smyy Jopun swesdoxd 10} AfIgeIunoooe JuLINSUS PaIDIS (I uauidorsas(] uvjd 210js]
910T/0€/60 29 SULIOITUOW JO SUBSUI B SE [9POW  SS900NG 0] 2007y, 2y} jusmajdury (¢
- 110Z/10/01 (¢ ‘1e0B snp 1opun swersord 103 ‘swrexrdold syt 10] yoeanno
9102Z/0€/60 ANIqeIunoade aInsus 0} ‘4 1S oYl Jo Sunouow pue jusdo[pAap ay) pue ‘AoBO0OADE ‘ANIQRIUNOIOE SINSUY|
- 110z/10/01 (T /A POIBIOOSSE SOTITANOE JUAWSFRURA WRIS01] JONPUOD pUE 2)BUIPINO) (T JBI[} $92IN0SAX/BUIPUN] SPIACId [[1M [19UN0)) emn
910Z/0€/60 ‘sweidoxd | [por) J0J AN[IQRIUNOISE SINSUS 0} UR[J 29I m.
- 1102/10/01 (1 GADON 24 Jo Sutiojiuow pue jusurdojaasp sy 1oy Fuipuny 21edo[fy (1 T'g| %

DU ], $AMNANIY uonyudwddur) s2AnWIgo

suoperdQedueInssy Anend) puno)) :§ VoD

SQUI[QWIL], PUB SIMIANDY ‘SeAndR[qQ) ‘S[eon
Ueld 913§ Teo A 9AL] 910C - 1107 AUDOIN
L1JO9]



sw g10Z/c1/1 patepdn

115 .

‘AAJDN 031 sHodar smess ‘oFesn ‘Aprouenb pun.J 1ssoy-fijom uvaf
apiaoxd pue viep sourunopad pue soiydeidownp pung 1SS0y uRyuiRlN ({
‘JUSAS UOISSIW S, (JADDN Y} YA JUI)SISUOCD,
910Z/0£/60 woy wnal s Juesiidde uodn papitiqns s1 JUIWSSINQUIILL Jey) 2InSuy (€ aJe Jey)) sapianoe Juip[ing Aydedes
- 110Z/10/01 (b -Juesijdde o3 sourapng jo Adod Jo ULI0] A9AIMS puE pue AoedoApe ‘OFueyo SWR]SAS 0) pIeSol
910Z/0€/60 JIAWISINQUITAI )L JUDS/PITedIo 10} [e1uap 10 [racidde ‘aInydoiq yna sjuedionred Suneonps ‘sjusas [euonRll
- 110Z/10/01 (€ naAd pue uoneoridde Jo maraar ‘uestdde o) 1d1e031 Jo 1o)2] ulpuss pue a3els-ur pusne 03 sanmunpoddo yim|
9102/05/60 Surpnpour ‘seureping puny 1550y 03 Fupaoooe suonesijdde ssaoolg (7 A/ Y ofdoad yo sueipiengd sioquiduy Q@
- 1107/10/01 (2 OBLUOS 301ALS ATrurey pue /] Yiia sfenpialpul o@?oi* ep.”
910T/0£/60 [euosiad ® ys||qeisd pue J0JBUIPICOd B AJUSp] ‘[IUNCD AADON =S
- 110Z/10/01 (1 Y} WIOT) punj 1SS0y 31} 10} SISQUIDWE 33IUNLIOD AJOSIAPR 9A1 102125 (] pgl o
(suonay|
aqnd 119N O — #10C/10/01 P2140iS)
(4030D43U07)
dwia ] suoypaunwio?) - 107/ 10/1 peiivis)
9102/0¢/60
- 1102/10/01 (# 'SAYJBLIUI A1} 10} pRINbSI SHOYS JUaUINIdAL/FUNINIEW Aup (dnoan 200j1oM Y[ - £107/15/21 P2PH)
910Z/0£/60 Ul JSISSe pue ueld oY) Jo s9An0afqo oy} syowold 0} savjueld yum o (¢ AYDIU] SUOHDIUNWUIO?) (FTION
- 110Z/10/01 (€ sweigord
910Z/05/60 $11 pue [12uno)) a1 Jo oFewr o) IdYUNJ 0) SuUoHelaI eIpaw uaidusis (¢ "SaATEIIUI ST JO ssoudIreme sajowrord @
- 110Z/10/01 (2 ‘S[RLI9JEW UOTIESIUNIUIIOD 3](IS$3008 AN (7 JRU} $20JN0521/3uIpurny apiacid J[im [UNOYD qﬂ
Q1OT/0E/60 "SSAIBTIIUT 0] Yoeano pue uneyreu m.
- 1102/10/01 {1 apraoid 0} sanenIU] SUOTEIIUNWIWO) WOy Fuipury 31ed0]ly (| £ ®
SOUIWI] PUR SANIANDY ‘S3A122[q() ‘S[eOD)
UB[d 911G 1BIA PALT 910T - 110T AAOON
L13OLI



Illllllllllllll-lll
L |

=

sSw 910Z/€1/1 paepdn

910Z/0€/60 2ARDIIU] SUIPUR.J 2OUBAZJUO.)
- 110Z/10/01 (v "10J0RIIUOD WO} Hodad SUIpuny ad0USIJU0d 21n03g (
9107/0L/60 ‘enuos "uBld 91815 AUIDDN,
- 1102/10/01 (€ ojur 1o1u2 pue doppasp ‘eacidde sapiunuor) sannoaxyg Summoqog (g atf) ur uosnjout 10J peuueld o ur sardoy
910Z/0£/60 UONRIOPISUOGD FUIPUN] PUB MILADI JOJ 9913 TUILIOY) SANNDIXF [IOUNO)) U0 $20UIBJUOD [BUOEY 10 3JBIS-UL O] 18] &
- 110zZ/10/01 (T 03 9p1a01d uaty ‘sysenbal uonjesijdde Suipuny souaIdjU0d 853001d (T juasaid o) s1axeads 1radxa yusjuod siosuodg DM
910Z/0£/60 IYR[smau QADDN 2
- 1107/10/01 (1 ul pue 9)1sgam U0 daneniul Sulpunyg aoua1ayuo]) AAION 1PYENW (1 9'g *
dANDIIU] JUdWAdOj243(T J10UR0))
9102/0€/60
- 1102/10/01 (¥ "SIaquIsur Funsixa "sal[Iie] o) pue /1
910Z/0€/60 pue mau 0) Jururen diysisquus preoq apiacid ‘A[jenuue 18891V (# g a[doad Sunoapye sswoijod pue saonorid]
- 1102/10/01 (¢ "10}9811U00 WOy podsy weidord andes (g [euonEU pue ojejs pue ‘uonedionled
910Z/£/60 PIIUWOY) dA1MdXY Aq pasordde siuassud im j0enuoo dopasq (z precq Surpiedal ssnuiIqe pue S[[Is Suppeu] &
- 1102/10/01 (T ‘Ueld 9183S AADOON -uo1spap diysmaqual (UOON 20Ueyu] emo
9107/0%/60 oy ‘ut worsnjou 1o] pauued o ‘ul $31doy uo sHadxs [eUOnBU PUE ‘3)E)S m.
- 11oz/t0/01 (1 ‘1eo0] £q s§uneaw [1ouno)) Apsuenb 10y suoneiussaid ojeuIpIoo) (] o~

SOUITOWIL ], PUE SANIANDY ‘SAN0R(q() ‘Sfeony
UE]d 911§ 1es A 94l 9T0C - 10T AUDIN
L1308l



Comprehensive List of Funded Initiatives
FFY 2011 - FFY 2016 Five Year State Plan

1 State Plan Development

Partner with CIDD to assist NCCDD in data cellection for programs under this goal.

2 Program Management/Program Quality Management (2011)

Supports Councit Program Management Staff and their related office and iravel expenses; develops,
manages, and evaluates statewide program activities across approximately 20 external initiatives and
multiple internal initiatives.

Council Development initiative

Provides for the education and training of the membership of the NCCDD to enhance their decision-
making skilis and abilities regarding practices and policies for people with intellectual and developmental
disabilities {IDD) and their families.

Administrative Staff and Council Expenses

- -

Comprises the capped 30% Administrative expense allowance for Council executive, management and
administrative staff and related office and travel expenses. Also includes budgeted expenses for quarterly
Council meetings and member reimbursements for Council meeting attendance.

§ Comprehensive Communications Plan

This initiative uses a strategic, targeted and efficient communications program to produce a measurable
increase in awareness of the NCCDD and greater understanding and appreciation for Council activities.

6 Public Policy Initiative

Promote and enhance education activities about the capabilities, preferences, and needs of individuals
with intellectual and developrnental disabilities, develop and support coalitions that support the policy
agenda of the Council; as well as develop and support training in self-advocacy, education of policy
makers, and citizen leaderships skills.

-

Route to Success

Aninnovative logic model for assisting Councils in developing, implementing, and
evaluating initiatives, such that investments are more likely to produce the systems

change with which Councils are charged under the Developmental Disabilities Bill of Rights
and Assistance Act {P.L. 106-402}.

MAHEC Mini Fellowship in Adult Developmental Disabilities

This initiative will transform a physician training program on the care of adults with developmental
disabilities frorn prototype to a formal incubator initiative then develop a national consensus on the
curricular content of neuro development disorders for pre-medical, medical, graduate and post graduate
medical education.

JWR Participant Fund

AN W _Sem

Funding for people with IDD and families to participate in diverse leaming forums, garnering information
necessary to make informed choices, enhance advocacy and positively impact public policy

160 NC Partners in Policymaking

This initiative teaches leadership skills, and the process of developing positive partnerships with elected
officials and other individuals who make policy decisions about services used by North Carolinians with
developmental disabilities and their families.

11 NC ADA Network

This initiative is designed o promote voluntary compliance with the Americans with Disabilities act {ADA)
through a statewide, grassroots network of local affiliates.

l12 ADA Network Fiscal Intermediary

This initiative ts designed to distribute funds fo the ADA Network affiliates, to the ADA Network Coordinator
and at the request of the ADA Network Coordinator .

I 117

"-WCUCWW Montog Elomaets 0018 Couna MastngiMay 201 EiSiote Plan Ralmndi201 1 - 2016 Cornp Infuation Escrpions Lt Updaled 22 1 0F 4 Printed 401472016 11:51 AM



Comprehensive List of Funded Initiatives
FFY 2011 - FFY 2016 Five Year State Plan

13 Advancing Strong Leaders in Developmental Disabilities

This initiative creates a leadership program for the state’s young professionals in the field of inteilectual
and developmential disabilities {IDD). This leadership program will create a cohesive group of emerg ing
leaders who hold shared, core values; are equipped to advocate for and implement contemporary public
policy in the 1DD filed and are prepared to assume the responsibilities of the state's current leaders as they
retire.

14 Supported Employment l.eadership Network {SELN)

15

16

17

18

19

20

NC Division Leaders providing technical assistance to IDD agencies o
promote employment.

Family Support: Coming of Age

This initiative will identify the barriers to accessing family support; developed recommendations for
removing such barriers; and recommend systems change strategies that are cost-effective and consistent
with the values that both families and self-advocates espouse.

Reaching the Summit of Success (Start 1011/12)

This inittative offers students with intellectual disabilities ongoing experiences and interactions with o.her
students within the context of a typical college environment, integrated with access to the activities and
services a college provides its students.

Conference Funding

This initiative provides funding for content expert speakers 10 present at conferences approved
by the Council.

Leaming and Earning After High School: The Role of Transition Services in Raising Expectations and
Attitudes for Students with Intellectual Disabilities

With this contract, the NCCDD will create a sustainable approach to providing transition services and
resources for students with intellectual disabilities, even with those with the most complex of these
disabilities. The approach will begin as early as middle school and continue through high school.

Bridging Practice and Policy: Transitions from Adult Care Homes

The intent of this contract is to create a cost-effective, policy and praciice blueprint or "bridge” for people
with /DD who currently reside in Aduli Care Homes and prefer to live in a home that they lease, share with
people of their choice, or own. The initiative will clearly delineate practice innovations and policy changes
with the potential to assist individuals with intellectual and developmental disabilities to transition from
ACHSs o homes of their own, with the appropriate services and supports. It will also address barders and
propose solutions.

Medical and Health Homes for People with Intellectual and Other Developmental Disabilities:
Coordination, Collaboration and Community

To ensure people with IDD receive the right care at right time in right setting, the contractor will develop a
medical and health home model with cross systems collaboration informed by individuals and families,
health networks, long-term support providers and policy stakeholders. An actionable model requires data-
informed input on needs, gaps, existing capacity and outcomes.

21 Emergency Preparation
To implement and maintain an emergency preparedness pregram that is inclusive of persons with /DD
and {hat builds capacity for disaster
Enhancing Disability Stakeholder Engagement in Managed Long-Term Services/Supports and
Primary/Acute Care Systems Coordination
This contract will be to support consumer and family involvement in several meetings relaied to the design,
planning steps, waiver or state plan changes, contract and policy language, readiness review components,
consumer outreach, monttering and oversight that is important for a well-informed redesign of the state's
Medicaid Waiver program.
5CGUNCL Vocencll Maotrg £ Eounci HrEGte Plan R - 2HE Gamp ntutn Descrpbons Lt Updatot s 2 ©f 4

[
ok
[+ <]
AN Ew i e Dl B I

Prinled 4142016 11:51 AM



Comprehensive List of Funded Initiatives
FFY 2011 - FFY 2016 Five Year State Plan

23 Advocacy Ambassadors

To obtain a current and accurate assessment of the staie of self-advocacy in North Carelina and receive
clear feedback from self-advocates about how the NCCDD can best support and advance the self-
advocacy movement.

4 Project Search

To implement & high school transition initiative which is a business-led, one-year, school-to-work program
that combines classroom instruction, career exploration, and relevant job-skills fraining through
strategically designed internships for students with I/DD.

5 NC Direct Support Professional Association

Establish a locai chapter of NADSP to advance the quality of the workiorce that supports individuals with
disabilities through increased competency, professionalism, and a voice in decision-making.

6 Safety and Security: Addressing Sexual Violence and Domestic Viclence

Ame,

To develop a meaningful, effective, and concise training for 1} providers of iniellectual andfor
developmental disability (I/DD) services and 2) providers of generic domeslic and sexual violence
prevention programs in the community.

Taskforce on Inclusive Child and Afterschool Care

This 18-month initiative is to invest in systems change efforts that promote and enhance the availability of
fully inclusive, high quality child and afterschool care environments, with an emphasis on facilitating
organizational or systems change that will lead 1o outcomes valued by families of children with intellectual
and other developmental disabilities. A taskforce will assist in the development of recommendations to
increase community capacity and support for addressing atlitudinal, policy, procedural, training, regulatory,

and funding barriers hindering the development of inclusive child and afterschool care environments for
children and youth.

8 NC Alliance for Full Participation/fEmployment First

-~

This initiative is an 18-month grant designed to enhance and promote the collaborative efforts of North
Carolina's AFP Steering Committee in substantially increasing the ability of individuals with developmental
disabilities to secure employment in regular, competitive, and inclusive settings. The initiative's intent will
be met as a result of the provision technical assistance, including consultation and meeting facilitation,
through the University of Massachusetis’ Institute for Community Inclusion.

- .
w

MAHEC Mini Fellowship in Adult Developmental Disabilities

This project will transform a physician training program on the care of adults with developmental disabilities
from prototype to a formal incubator project then develop a national consensus on the curricular content of
neuro development disorders for pre-medical, medical, graduate and post graduate medical education.

0 NC Relationships Initiative (aka Real Relationships, Risks, and Responsibilities)

This 18-month initiative is to promote systemic change; provide education around and information about
healthy sexual and intimate relationships; offer people with VDD opportunities for active participation in
identifying barriers and solutions; and increase commumity capacity/willingness to address attitudinal,
policy, and or regulatory barriers associated with such relationships for people with 1DD.

1 ASANC - Infrastructure and Staff Support

This Project is designed to provide staff support and adminisirative services and supports to the Executive
Director, board and members of the Asscciation of Self Advocates of North Carolinag (ASANC).

2 ASANC - Building a Stronger ASANG
This one vear initiative is designed to support the Association of Self-Advocates NC (ASANC) in their

efforts to build a new stronger structure for their Asscciation that will provide leadership and supports
needed fo build a strang organization where self-advocates make decisions and do the work.

119.

=\ COUNGR T Montng E 16 Coumcil Mpetngtibiny Plan 19+ 96 Comp i Leaa_Uptatnd s 3 0f 4 Printed Af14/2016 1151 A



Comprehensive List of Funded Initiatives
FFY 2011 - FFY 2016 Five Year State Plan

33 phase Il: NCCDS Research and Expansion Initiative

This initiative will assure access to and provide administration and coordination for all new CDS
participants; develop a comprehensive public awareness and marketing plan for general and targeted
groups and promote CDS and outreach to providers agencies, Community colleges, universities, and
DHHS agencies

34 Phase II: Technical Assistance NCCDS Research and Expansion Initiative

This initiative will provide consultation, training, and technical assistance in support of the Phase 11-CDS
Research/Expansion initiative

35 (Summit Implementation) Technical Assistance Collaborative {Ended 1/31/12)

This project aims 1o provide technical assistance to divisions within the NC Department of Health and
Human Services so that the recommendations oullined in the 2008 Summit on Developmental Disabilities
can be implemented successfully. The Division of MH/DD/SAS and the Division of Medical Assistance will
be the primary recipients of this technical assistance.

36 Better Together Sibling Support Initiative

To address the various needs and barriers that siblings of a person with an intellectual or other
developmental disability face.
37 Upward to Financial Stability
This initiative prormotes opportunities for people with /DD to advance economic seif-sufficiency by
developing financial literacy and asset building skills.
38 Rethinking Guardianship: Building A Case For Less Restrictive Alternatives

The goal of the Rethinking Guardianship: Building A Case For Less Restrictive Alternatives Initiative is to:
build a workgroup that will address changes needed to the guardianship statutes, policies, and practices
on an engoeing basis; build a collection of relevant data to support innovative approaches to guardianship
alternatives; build a knowledge base of best practices including states that have adopted alternatives to
guardianship and the Uniform Adult Guardianship and Protective Proceedings Jurisdiction Act and; build
long term support for change.

SALUNGIL Wit Moty Courall o Wiy Fa 1- 30186 Comp Inmgtve Descripghons Let_ Lpdetsdsis 4 0F 4

120 l
Printed 4M4/2016 11:51 AM






